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lnOependent Audltor S RsporĮ

To the Shareholder of Lietuvos draudimas AB

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Lietuvos draudimas AB ("the Company"). The Company's
f inancial statements comprise:

o the statement of f inancial position as at 31 December 2021 ,

o the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended,
r the statement of changes in shareholder equity for the year then ended,
r the statement of cash f lows for the year then ended, and
. notes to the f inancial statements, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

ln our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Companyasat3l December202l,andof itsfinancial performanceanditscashflowsfortheyearthen
ended in accordance with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards, as adopted bythe European Union.

We conducted ouraudit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (lSAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are f urther described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the lnternational
Ethics Standards Board forAccountants'Code of Ethics for ProfessionalAccountants (includrng lnternational
Independence Standards) (IESBA Code)together with the requirements of the Law on Audit of Financial
Statements of the Republic of Lithuania that are relevant to audit in the Republic of Lithuania, and we have
f ulf illed our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Law on Audit of Financial Statements of the
Republic of Lithuania and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audrt evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the ftnancial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. Each audit matter and our respective response are described below.

@2021 KPMG Baltics, UAB, a Lithuēnian limited liability company and a
member firm of the KPlMG global organiŽation of independent member firms affiliated
with KPMG lntern8tional Limited, a privatė EngIish company limited by guarantee.
All righls reserved. J
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The Company's gross of reinsurance outstanding claims reserves as at 31 December 2021:
EUR 134 million (31 December 2020: EUR 123 million). The change rn gross reinsurance outstanding claims
reserves in2021: EUR 11 million (increase) (2020:13 million (increase)).

Reference to the financial statements: "Technical reserves" on page 33 (Summary of significant
accounting policies)and Note 7 "Outstanding claim reserves" on page 43 (Notes to the financial
statements).

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

Gross outstanding claims reserves ("claim
reserves") for the Company, as a non-life insurance
provider, constitute the most significant element of
insurance contract liabilities in its statement of
financial position. The most signifrcant claim
reserves are associated with the obligatory motor
third party liability, motor own damage and property
portfolios.

The Management Board uses a range of complex
and subjective actuarial methods to determine the
best-estimate amounts of those reserves as at the
reporting date, whether in respect of reported
claims (i.e. RBNS), or those not yet reported (i.e.

IBNR).

The estimation of the amounts of claim reserves
generally involves a significant degree of
Management Board's judgment mainly in respect
of the assumptrons about f uture events and
developments. Relatively insignificant changes in
those assumptions may have a material effect on
the estimated amounts of claim reserves. The
assumptions most subject to estimation
uncertainty are those in respect of loss ratios, claim
frequency, average claim amounts, court
settlements, discount rates, changes in the amount
of future annuity payments, regress and the
expected payment period.

The complexity of the models applied may give rise
to errors as a result of inaccurate and incomplete
data inputs or the design or application of the
models. Thus the completeness and accuracy of
the data underlying the actuarral projections was
also an area of our audit focus.

Due to the above factors, we considered
measurement of the non-life insurance claim
reserves to be our key audit matter.

Our audit procedures, performed, where applicable,
with the assistance of our own actuarial specialists,
included, among others:

o Testing of the design and implementation of the
selected key controls related to the process of
establishing and adjusting outstanding claim
reserves. This included testing the relevant
management review controls, accounting and
actuarial controls, such as reconciliations of key
data underlying the actuarial calculations (claims
paid and incurred, premiums written and earned,
and number of claims), and data validation.

o Assessing the appropriateness of the actuarial
methodologies applied by the Company for
consistency as well as against the requirements
of the financial reporting standards and
ma rket/industry practice.

r Challenging key inputs and assumptions applied
in estimating claim reserves, including those in
respect of the loss ratios, claim frequency and
average size of claims, regress, allowance for
f uture claims inf lation (including for annuities),
discount rates, expected payment dates and
payment period - by reference to industry trends,
also considering the applicable legal and
regulatory requirements and the requirements of
the relevant financial reporting standards.

o For signif icant portfolios, performing a
retrospective analysis of the accuracy and
completeness of the Company's gross
outstanding claim reserves recognized at the end
of prior year, comparing this analysis to the
Company's current year's actual experience, and
seeking the Management Board's explanations
for any signif icant differences.

Measurement of claim reserves

@2021 KPMG Baltics, UAB, 8 LithusniĒn limited liability comp€ny and a
mgmbėr firm of the KPMG glob8l organiz€tion of independent mēmber firms affiliated
with KPMG lntėrnstionaI Limited, a private English company limitēd by guērantėe.
All rights reservėd.
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a For most significant insurance contract
portfolios, including obligatory motor third party
liability, motor own damage and property,
developing an independent estimate of the gross
outstanding claims liability for those not yet
reported, comparing our independent estimates
to the Company's estimates and seeking
Management Board's explanations for any
signif ica nt d iff erences.

Assessing the Company's provision for
outsta nding clai ms-related disclosures against
the requirements of the relevant f inancial
reporting standards.

a

Other lnformation

The other įnformation comprises the information included in the Company'S annUal management report,
including Corporate Social Responsibility Report, but does not rnclude the financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon. Management is responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the f inancial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the f inancial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. lf,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there rs a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

ln addition, our responsibility is to considerwhether information included in the Company's annual
management report for the f inancial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with
the financial statements and whether annual management report has been prepared in compliance with
applicable legal requirements. Based on the work carried out in the course of audit of financial statements,
rn our opinion, in all material respects:

o The information given rn the Company's annual management report for the f inancial year for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

o The Company's annual management report has been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Lawon Financial Reporting by Undertakings of the Republic of Lithuania.

We are also required to report on whether the Corporate Social Responsibility Report has been provided to
us by the Company. lf we identify that Corporate Social Responsibility Report has not been provided, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards, as adopted by the European Union, and for
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are f ree f rom material misstatement, whether due to f raud or error.

02021 KPMG Baltics, UAB, a Lithuanian limited liability company and a
mėmber firm of thē KPMG 9lobsl organization of indepėndent member firms affilisted
with KPlMG lnternational Limited, a privatė English company limited by guarantee.
All rights rosērved.
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ln preparing the financialstatements, management is responsible forassessing the Company,s abilityto
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and usrng the
gotng concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidĮte the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the f inancial statements as a whole are
f ree f rom material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with lSAs willalways detect a material misstatementįhen it exists.
Misstatements can arise f rom fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with lSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintarn professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
f raud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is suff icient and appropriate to provrde a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resUlting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error. as fraud maį
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentatlons, or theįverride of internal control.

r Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit rn order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressinįan opinion on the
effectiveness of the company's internal control.

r Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainiy exists related to events or
conditrons that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. lf
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor,s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including anįsignificant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
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Under decision of the general shareholders 'meeting we were appointed on 28 March 2013 f or the first
time to audit the Company's financial statements. Our appointment to audit the Company,s financial
statements is renewed each two years under decision of the general shareholders 'meeting, and the total
uninterrupted period of engagement is g years.

we confirm that our audit opinion expressed in the opinion section of our report is consistent with the
additional report which we have submitted to the Company and its Audit Committee.
We confirm that in light of our knowledge and belief, services provided to the Company are consistent withthe requirements of the law and regulations and do not .orpri." non-audit services referred to in Article
5(1) of the Regulation (EU) No 53712014 of the European Parliament and of the council.
ln addition to the statutory audit services we provided to the Company, there were no services, which
would not have been disclosed in the financial statements.

On behalf of KPMG Balrics, UAB

Domantas Dabulis
Partner pp
Certified Auditor

Vilnius, the Republic of Lithuania
28 March 2022

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters thatwere of most significance in the audit of the financial stateūents of the current period and are thereforethe key audit matters. we describe these matters in our auditors' report unless law or regulationprecludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing sowould reasonably be expected to outweigh the pubiic interest benefits of such communication.
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Lietuvos draudimas AB
company's code 110051834, J. Basanavičiaus st' 12, Vilnius

Members of
For the vear

the supervisory Board, the Board of Directors and lndependent Auditors
ended 31 December2021

Disclosure of council Members participating in other organisations

Katarzyna Anna Galus

Council

Name. Surname

Katarzyna Anna Galus
Marcin Goral
Weronika Dejneka
Jan Pstragowski
Krzysztof Soltysik

Board

Name. Surname

Kęstutis Šerpytis
Artūras Juodeikis
Aurelija Kazlauskienė
Julius Kondratas
Raimondas Geleževičius
Mihkel Uibopuu
Simonas Lisauskas
Arūnas Rumskas

Position:
Organisation:

Legal form of the organisation:

""0"tr0;::Z:,

Position
Organisation:

Legal form of the organisation:

""^r"ro;::rZ:,

Position:
Organisation:

Legal form of the organisation:
Company code:

Address:

Position.
Organisation.

Legal form of the organisation:

""ro"fo;::::,

Position.
Organisation.

Legal form of the organisation:

""^*ro;::z;,

Position

Chairman of the Supervisory Board
Member of the Supervisory Board
Member of the Supervisory Board
Member of the Supervisory Board
Member of the Supervisory Board

Position

Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer
Board Member, Claims Department Director
Board Member, Strategy, Clients and Marketing Department Director
Board Member, Undenrvriting Department Director
Board Member, Private Sales Department Director
Board Member, Manager of Lietuvos draudimas AB Eestifiliaal
Board Member, Commercial Sales Department Director
Board Member, Finance Department Director

Director of Supervision of Foreign Operations Department
PZU SA
Joint Stock Company
0000009831
Jana Pawla Ave. ll 24, 00-133 Warsaw, poland

Director of Supervision of Foreign Operations Department
PZU Zycie SA
Joint Stock Company
000003021 1

Jana Pawla Ave. ll 24, 00-133 Warsaw, potand

Chairman of the Supervisory Board
AAS BALTA
lnsurance Joint Stock Company
40003049409
Raunas St. 10/12, LV-1039 Riga, Latvia

Chairman of the Supervisory Board
UAB PZU Lietuva gyvybes draudimas
lnsurance Joint Stock Company
1 10082737
Ko n stitu cijo s Ave. 7, LT-09 30 I V i I n i u s, L ith u a n i a

Member of the Supervisory Board
OPEC Pulawy
Association
0000012660
lzabelli St. 6, 24-100 Pulawy, Poland 7

8



Lietuvos draudimas AB
Company's code 110051834, J. Basanavičiaus st. 12, Vilnius

Members of the Supervisory Board, the Board of Directors and lndependent Auditors
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Position:
Organisation:

Legal form of the organisation:
Company code:

Address:

Member of the Supervisory Board
Voxel SA
Joint Stock Company
0000238176
Wielicka str.265, 30-663 Krakow, Poland

Executive Director of PZU Group Strategy
PZU SA
Joint Stock Company
0000009831
Jana Pawla Ave. ll 24, 00-133 Warsaw, Poland

Executive Director of PZU Group Strategy
PZU Zycie SA
Joint Stock Company
000003021 1

Jana Pawla Ave. ll 24, 00-133 Warsaw, Poland

Member of the Supervisory Board
UAB PZU Lietuva gyvybės draudimas
lnsurance Joint Stock Company
1 1 0082737
Ko n stitu cijos Ave. 7, LT-09 30 B V i I n i u s, Lith u a n i a

Member of the Supervisory Board
AAS BALTA
lnsurance Joint Stock Company
40003049409
Raunas St. 10/12, LV-1039 Riga, Latvia

Executive Director of Banking Seryices and lnvestment Products
PZU Zycie SA
Joint Stock Company
000003021 1

Jana Pawla Ave. ll 24, 00-133 Warsaw, Poland

Member of the Supervisory Board
UAB PZU Lietuva gyvybes draudimas
Joint Stock Company
1 1 0082737
Ko n stitu c ijo s Ave. 7, LT -09 30 I V i I n i u s, Lith u a n i a

Member of the Supervisory Board
AAS BALTA
lnsurance Joint Stock Company
40003049409
Raunas St. 10/12, LV-1039 Riga, Latvia

Marcin Goral

Position:
Organisation:

Legal form of the organisation:

""rr"Xlo;::::,,

Position:
Organisation:

Legal form of the organisation:

"o'ouro;::rz:,

o,n:;::Į9'i:,
Legal form of the organisation:

Company code:
Address;

Position:
Organisation:

Legal form of the organisation:

"orou?o;::::,

Weronika Dejneka

Position: Executive Director of Banking Seryrces and lnvestment Products
Organisation: PZU SA

Legal form of the organisation: Joint Stock Company
Company code: 0000009831

Address: Jana Pawla Ave. ll 24, 00-133 Warsaw, Poland

Position:
Organisation:

Legal form of the organisation:
Company code:

Address:

Position:
Organisation:

Legal form of the organisation:

""ro"fo;::::,

Position:
Organisation:

Legal form of the organisation:
Company code:

Address:
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Lietuvos draudimas AB
Company's code 110051834, J. Basanavičiaus st. 12, Vilnius

Members of the Supervisory Boa
For the year ended 31 December

rd, the Board of Directors and lndependent Auditors
2021

Position:
Organisation:

Legalform of the organisation:

""'*x!;::z:,

o,n:;::ni,;,
Legalform of the organisation:

Company code:
Address:

Jan Pstragowski

o,n::,::nT:,
Legal form of the organisation:

Company code:
Address;

Krzysztof Soltysik

o,n:;::ni,:,
Legalform of the organisation:

Company code:
Address:

Position:
Organisation:

Legal form of the organisation:
Company code:

Address:

Position:
Organisation:

Legalform of the organisation:
Company code:

Position:
Organisation:

Legal form of the organisation:

""'0";I;:"0::,

Position:
Organisation:

Legal form of the organisation:

"'^r"ro;::Z:,

Coordinator
TFI PZU SA
Joint Stock Company
0000019102
Jana Pawla aleja ll 24, 00-133 Warsaw, poland

Chairman of Management Board
SA,,PZU Cash"
Joint Stock Company
000068841 1

Jana Pawla aleja ll 24, 00-133 Warsaw, potand

Head of Project Management
TFI PZU SA
Joint Stock Company
0000019102
Jana Pawla Ave. ll 24, 00-133 Warsaw, poland

Director of Credit Risk and Related parties
PZU SA
Joint Stock Company
0000009831
Jana Pawla Ave. ll 24, 00-133 Warsaw, poland

Member of the Supervisory Board
PZU Ukraine Life lnsurance prJSC lC
Joint Stock Company
32456224
62, Dehtiarivska str., Kyiv, 0411, ĮJkraine

Director of Credit Risk and Retated parties
PZU Zycie SA
Joint Stock Company
000003021 1

Jana Pawla Ave. ll 24, 00-133 Warsaw, potand

Member of the Supervisory Board
UAB PZU Lietuva gyvybes draudimas
lnsurance Joint Stock Company
1 10082737

Address: Konstitucijos Ave. 7, LT-\IA\B Vitnius, Lithuania

Position: Member of the Supervisory Board
Organisation: 4AS BALTA

Legal form of the organisation: rnsurance Joint stock company

"" ^ 
o" 

xl ;:::: f::"'::3lofo,, r, LV - 1 0 39 R Ę a, Latvi a

Member of the Supervisory Board
PZU Ukraine PrJSC tC
Joint Stock Company
2078231 2
62, Dehtiarivska str., Kyiv, 0411, ĮJkraine
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Lietuvos draudimas AB
company's code 110051834, J. Basanavičiaus st.'t2, Vilnius

Members of the Supervisory Board, the Board of Directors and lndependent Auditors
For the ended 31 December2021

Disclosure of Board Members paĖicipating in other organisations

Kęstutis Šerpytis
Position:

Organisation:
Legal form of the organisation:

"o'o"ro;:!::,

Position:
Organisation:

Legal form of the organisation:

"o^'"tr0;::"2:,

Raimondas GeleŽevičius

Position:
Organisation:

Legal form of the organisation:
Company code:

Address:

Mihkel Uibopuu

Position:
Organisation:

Legal form of the organisation:
Company code:

Address:

Arūnas Rumskas

Position:
Organisation:

Legal form of the organisation:

""ro"fo;:::r:,

Position:
Organisation:

Legal form of the organisation:
Company code:

Address:

Position:
Organisation:

Legal form of the organisation:

""r0"?o;::::,

Chairman of the Council
Lith u an i a n I nsurers Associ atio n
Association
121737585
Gedimino Ave. 45-1 1, LT-01 1 09 Vilnius, Lithuania

Member of the Council
Motor lnsurers' Bureau of the Republic of Lithuania
Association
125709291
Algirdo Sį. 3ą LT-03606 Vilnius, Lithuania

Member of the Board
AB Lietuvos radijo ir televizijos centras
Stock Company
120505210
Sausio 73-osios sį. 70, LT-04347 Vilnius, Lithuania

Member of the Board
MKU IDEED OU
Joint Stock Company
12206020
Mefsrse Sf. 5-3 Tallinn, Estonia

Coordinator of the Foreign Operations Supervlsion Department
PZU SA
Joint Stock Company
0000009831
Jana Pawla Ave. ll 24, 00-133 Warsaw, Poland

Member of the Board, Chief Financial officer
AAS BALTA
lnsurance Joint Stock Company
40003049409
Raunas St. 10/12, LV-1039 Riga, Latvia

Member of the Board
UAB PZU Lietuva gyvybes draudimas
lnsurance Joint Stock Company
1 10082737
Kon st itu c ijo s Ave. 7, LT-09 30 8 V i I n i u s, Lith u a n i a

Name and address of the independent auditor:

KPMG Baltics, UAB
Lvivo St. 101
LT-08'104, Vilnius
Lithuania
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Lietuvos draudimas AB
Company's code 110051834, J. Basanavičiaus st. 12, Vilnius

ANNUAL MANAGEMENT REPORT
For the year ended 31 December 2021

amounts in thousands of euro unless otherwise

Overview of the market

ln 2021, the Lithuanian non-life insurance market recovered and compensated for the fall in 2020.Accordingto the Bank of Lithuania, the non-life insurance market of the_couįt.v, lnįūoing'tn" brrn"hes of foreigninsurance companies doing business in Lithuania, reached EUR 72.1 million in insuiance premiums written for2021,which is 8.5% more than in2O2O.

7'1 million contracts were concluded in 2021in the Lithuanian non-life insurance market, which is 5..1% morethan in 2020' There were 5.3 million valid non-life insurance įontracts at the end of 2021, which is 6.8% morethan in 202o' ln 2o21 , the largest part of those insuran"" .onū"ts accounted for compulsory motor third partyliability insurance policies (MTPL), comprising 43o/o of alt the įįntracts, which is siiįntty less than in 2O2O.
According to written premiums, the MTPL remained the largest non-life insurance type, generating EUR 239million in premiums in2021, which is 33% of allnon-life insuržnįe market premiums. ln the business insurancesegment' the MTPL grew by 4.5%, while in the resident insurance segment, this insurance type continued tofall in 2021, with the premiums decrease of 6.1% in 2021 .

The second largest įnsurance type by the premiums written was the terrain vehicle Casco insurance. TheCasco insurance premiums written in žozl accounted for the same numb er (23%)of all the non-life insurancemarket premiums as in 2020, although the share of contracts is significantty more moderate, comprising 6%.ln the resident insurance segment, thį terrain vehicle insurance growth in zr5zl amounted to nearly 16%, whilethe growth of the casco insurance premiums written in the business segment increased by nearly 5%.
The third largest insurance type is property insurance, accounting for 1g% of all insurance premium s.ln 2021,property insurance almost doubled its growth compared to 2O2o, with the premiūrš ū","r." of 15o/o'

According to the insurance premiums written, these three types of insurance - MTpL, casco and propertyinsurance - comprised nearly 760/o of the entire non-life insuiance market in Lithuania_
ln 2021, the premiums written by Lietuvos draudimas AB in the non-life insurance products increased morethan the market in Lithuania, and only somewhat less than in Estonia. Tū c;į;ny maintains its leadingposition in Lithuania, with its position secured among the toį four largest non-tirĮln.urance companies inEstonia.

ln 2021, the contracts.concluded by Lietuvos draudimas AB amounted to 2 million, which nearly as manycontracts as in 2o2o' The growth rate of the insurance premiums written increased oi a.a"/".1n 2021, the totalpremiums written by the company in the Lithuanian market amounted to EUR 21|'mllion.According to thecountry's market share held, Lietuvos draudimas AB remains a strong market leader, holding 2g.7o/o of theentire market at the end of 2021.

The resident įnsurance market premiums amounted to EUR 324 million in 202L ln the resident insurancesegment, the premiums grew by 5-3oh as compared to 2020, wįth Lietuvos draudimas AB growth comprisingcorrespondingly 3'3%' The growth in the Company's corpoiate customer segment was significanly greaterthan in the residential segment. The amount of bušiness insuranc" premiums written by Lietuvos draudimasAB grew by 17.2% in 2021and while the market grew at the raū of 11.3%.
ln 2021, the market g^r9JĄ/th was largely determined by the health insurance, the premium amount of whichincreased by nearly 260/o in compaiison wiĮh 2020. tne heattn insurance market share held by Lietuvosdraudimas AB had the largest increase among all the insurers offering this service - from 1s.2% to 1T.s%.
Estonian Market

The Estonian non-life insurance market recognized EUR 399 million gross written premium in 2o2l increasingby 4'2o/o compared to EUR 383 million in 2o2O. The number of non-ūfe insurance g;";;;;įį* il#ffiš 'Į;
the Lietuvos draudimas AB Estonian branch in 2021 increased 3.6% compa rea to žožo_ amounting to a totalof EUR 58 million. According to the data of the Estonian-ūĮpĮrtr"nt of Statistics Lietuvos draudimas ABmarket share was 14.5% decreasing slightly by oz% yly. lĖtūvos draudimas AB Estonian branch endedfourth according to the premiums in tĒe EĮtonia non-life insurance market.
MTPL market premiums did not recover and remained under prior_period by -4o/o (EUR -3.6 million). Marketgrowth Was supported mainly by health business strong growtĖ (+tg0% or EUR 3.8Į million), private vehiclesinsurance (+6.5o/o or EUR 4.1 million), private properįi*s.ovr'or EUR 3'9 million) being the most resilientduring the crises and insurance for pecuniary loss įrouitn ęioi"t" or EUR 4 million) driven by LHV'
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The structure of non-life insurance in 2021was dominated by motor insurance, which accounted for 55%,including motor own damage insurance accounting for 31% foilowing uv pioį"riv inru.rn." with 29% of thegross premium written in the market.

As of December 2021, there were '13 companies operating in the country's non-life insurance sector amongwhich the biggest 4 companies held approx. 7Oo/o of Estonia-n non-life insuūnce market. Estonian capital basedinsurer LHV Kindlustus started the active offering of motor insurance in 202L LHV Kindlustus is also providinghome insurance, MTPL and travel insurance, įs well as equipment, additional įuarantee insurance andinsurance for pecuniary loss.

Financial results of the Company
Non-life insurance premiums written in 2021 by Lietuvos draudimas AB together with its Estonian branchamounted to EUR 2-72 miĮlion and, compared to the EUR 253 million of premūms įritt"n in 2}2o,achieved a7'5% growth. The Company successfully grew in both of its Lithuanian and Estonian markets.
The Lietuvos draudimas AB demonstrated profitable performance in both its markets. The net profit of Lietuvosdraudimas AB in 2021, including the result of the Esįonian branch, amounting to rūn 26.9 million, comparedto EUR 25'7 million in 2o2o. The Company's operations Were profitable in botĒ the non-life insurance activitiesand investment portfolio managementin 2021

Į!9 comoany earned EUR 27.9 million from direct non-life insurance activities in2021(EUR 27.6 million in2020)' The successful result in the non-life insurance segment and stable profits were determined by thefurther growth of premiums earned, which is the conseqĮence of the increased business volumes in theCompany and decreasing cost ratio. The fixed cost control in the comprny 
"nJio"us 

on efficiency preventthe increase of the expense indicators at the same or higher rate than inįomį, resutting in the improvement ofthe Company's profitability.

The Company continued its conservative in-vestment policy in 2021, concentrating its investments in theEuropean government debt securities and safe securities of įhe strong companies. 
J

ln terms of investments, the Company's activities in 2021were also successful. The profits from investmentactivities of Lietuvos draudimas AB together with the Estonian branch comprised EUR3.2 million, as comparedto EUR 2.8 million in profits from investment activities in2o2o.
The sum of claims settled with the Company's customers continues to increase annually. ln 2021, lheCompany together with the Estonian branch settled non-life insurance claims for the amount of EUR 142.9million, i.e.,10o/o more than ayear ago (EUR i30.3 million in2o2o).
corporate income tax expense of Lietuvos draudimas AB increased by 1 1% in 2021and amounted to EUR3.9 million (EUR 3.5 miilion in 2O2O).

Shareholders and structure

Lietuvos draudimas AB belongs to the Polish, central and Eastern Europe insurance group powszechny
Zaklad Ubezpieczen Sp6lka Akcyjna (PZU sA), which held 100% of Lietuvbs draudimas AB shares in 2021 .in 2021.

ln 2-02!' the Company acquired, disposed and, as at 31 Decem ber 2021, held no own shares. ln 2o2oand asat 31 December 2021, Lietuvos draudimas AB did not have subsidiaries. The Company has a branch inEstonia, which operates under a registered name of Lietuvos Draudimas AB Eesti filiaal. Company code12831829, head office address parnu mnt..141, Tailinn, Estonia.
Company strategy

ln 2020-2021, Lietuvos draudimas operated in accordance with the Restart strategy. The strategy was focusedon successful growth and optimising the company's cost base in order to maintjn the position of the marketleader and stable financial results: consistent profūability, ambitious combined insurance indicator and efficientcost management.

At the end of 2021, the Company approved a new strate gyfor 2022-2024.lnthis strategy, the company namedits goals, linking them with the activities of the sharehot-ūer PZU SA. Lietuvos draudiijas AB will continue topursue consistent activities seeking stable growth and the best customer experience. The Company 
"l.į 

plįnšto pay more attention to sustainability activities and continue to invest in thė weĮl-being of its employees.
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The Gompany's customers and their experience

At the end of 2021, Lietuvos draudimas AB had 597,234 unique customers, of which 561,937 were natural
persons and 31 ,297legal entities. |n2020, the company had 588,155 customers.

Seeking improvement of the services and contact points with the clients, since 2010, Lietuvos draudimas AB
has been using the Voice of the Customer system. This system helps to listen to customers and consider their
opinion. At the end of 2021, the Net Promoter Score indicator amounted to 77o/o (74o/o in 2020).

During 2021, rhe number of private customers grew the fastest in housing, casco and compulsory third-party
liability insurance products. ln the segment of corporate customers, the highest growth was recorded in the
health and Casco insurances.

"lt makes a difference where to acquire insurance" - a value strategy for private customers
Lietuvos draudimas AB continued the value strategy for private clients prepared in 2015, thus further improving
and expanding the range of products with added value for clients.

Com pulsorv driver's th ird-partv liabil itv insura nce:

ln 2021, the Company improved the Driver's Third-Party Liability lnsurance offer and offered customers a new
added value to the usual insurance package - insurance against complete destruction of the vehicle, aimed
at customers who do not have a casco insurance but want to protect themselves from losses when after the
occurrence of the event the vehicle is deemed unrepairable (beyond economic repair). ln this case, the
customer can receive a maximum benefit of up to EUR 10,000.

Casco insurance

After the renewed casco product introduced to the market in 2020, Lietuvos draudimas further developed and
improved this product in 2021, focusing on increasing the value for its customers. The sum insured of accident
insurance has been increased from EUR 10,000 to EUR 15,000, the product terms and conditions have been
updated, eliminating the "grey areas", increasing the technical assistance limit in the event of an accident
abroad, and clarifying the definition of a motorhome.

Home insurance

ln 2021, the Company substantially revised the terms and conditions of the housing product insurance and
issued a new version of the terms and conditions to ensure that product coverage meets the current needs of
customers. The changes were intended to correct the discrepancies, reduce the "grey areas" due to insured
events and, of course, to add the most relevant values so that the insurance coverage is constantly relevant
and best meets the growing needs of the customer in the market.

ln 2021, Lietuvos draudimas continued to offer extended home insurance to new customers. ln order to
encourage non-insured residents to take out home insurance, the Company organised a communication
campaign "Extended home insurance" and offered a 1S-months housing coverage for a l2-months' price.
During the campaign, we provided all new customers with the same additional values by choosing the home
insurance that meets their needs: an increased sum insured of third-party liability insurance, free personal
third-party liability insurance and extended insurance coverage.

Personal insurance

Lietuvos draudimas started the second half of 2021with a campaign for customers "Two insurances as gifts"
and paid great attention to personal insurance sales in the family segment. All new clients with family persbnal
insurance were given two additional insurances free of charge: personal third-party liability and medical
expenses.

Travel insurance

ln response to the ongoing pandemic, in 2021, the Company offered its customers the opportunity to acquire
the travel insurance product with a current COVID-19 risk option.

Customer service at company offices
ln 2021, Lietuvos draudimas AB invested in the renovation of its offices throughout Lithuania and plans to
continue these works in 2022.1n total, the Company renovated 26 offices (compared to 5 offices renovated in
2020, and 10 in 2019), which were adapted for hybrid working.
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The decision to work in a hybrid model means_that the Company's employees, taking into account the ongoingpandemic, work in the office by a factor of O.5 _ part of the time workinį in the offiče and part at home]This
work model also requires renovated premises that would enable efficient ūse of the .pr"" required for a smallernumber of employees.

At the same time, renovation also means modern solutions for the Company's customers and comfort foremployees. Each office adapted to hybrid working is equipped accordinį to'the įrevailing modern trends:renovated interior, excellent plumbing and power networks, and spaces Įrr.angeo' for convenient customer
service.

Customer service in e-space

2021 was another year of the digital leap that extended the growing need of customers to deal with insurance
issued remotely that emerged with the onset of the covlū-19 pJndemic. Realising the changing habits ofcustomers, also this year the Company focused on customer service in e-space _ iurther impiovĮo its self-service system Savas LD and expanded the range of services available in thĮ e-space.
When assessing customer activity, the Company calculated the following self-service results:

o The number of successful logins to self-service in 2O2l increased by as much as Sl,2o/ocompared to2020.
o ln2021, we recorded + 0.5 million more successful logins.
' Along with the growth in logins, the payments via Savas LD also increased by 32o/o, amounting to

nearly EUR Z million more than in 2020.

During 2021, in order to improve the customer experience in self-service, the Company devoted most of its lTresources and made the following changes:

o lmprovements in cash balance management and payments;
o Extending casco damage registration functionalities;o Development of card payments;
. lmprovements in the administration of business product offers;o Process for claims registration and administration in compulsory driver's third party liability insurance;o Process for property craims registration and administration.

ln general, all actions allowed to significantly increase the share of active customers in the self-service. Thecompany recorded that in 2021, self-service had 49.g% active private customers (37.2o/o -in2o2o), and 16..5o/obusiness customers (6.7% - in 2020).

ln addition to the changes in the self-service space, the Company has developed new products that customers
can conveniently purchase in e-space, i.e., home and casco insurance products. The team also worked toimprove the customer's route on the Lietuvos draudimas website www.ld.lt to make it faster and more
convenient for the customer.

Business customers - relationship based on trust
Close communication and trust are the key aspects that the Company fosters in its communication withLietuvos draudimas business customers. ln order to cooperate smootĖly, We run various initiatives in our
organisation - we invite legal clients to educational and entertainment events, we encourage them to talk not
only about business or future contracts, but also to communicate in a slighfly different informal environment.
According to the data of 2021, we achieved a market share of 22.8o/o in the business sector, and we grew by
17.2o/o in '12 months compared to 2020. We value business customers who trust us, choose us and allow us
to contribute to the security of their business.

ln 2021, the needs of business customers also responded to the general trend - businesses were looking forways to improve the physical and psychological health of their ēmployees, and people valued trrese st"tepĮtaken by employers. As health coverage is in pursuit of important aspēcts, in zožl, įietuuos draudimas AB
continued expending the number of insured persons covered with health insurance and increased its marketshare in this product by offering a complex of additional actions, which allowed to expand the penetration of
this segment and stimulated companies, which previously did noį have this insurance,'to acquire this product.
It is estimated that during 2021, Health lnsurance grew by 25.9o/o in the entire market, and Lietuvos draudimasABhealthinsurancesales.aregrowingeveryyear,withagrowth of 47.2o/oin2020and44.7o/oin2o2l,reaching
the market share of 17.5%, which means the company his taken the second place in the market.
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Contributing to emotional stability and health, the Company organised online lectures on health topics for its
Health lnsurance business customers. ln 2021, Lietuvos draudimas AB created a new e-space to foster
communication with brokers and intermediaries, where important information and expert insights are
conveniently shared. The Company also ran a preventive communication line on the social network Linkedln
called #patarimasverslu i (#tipsforbusiness).

The year 2021 also delighted us with new partnerships with other businesses in the Lithuanian market, creating
the best experience for customers. Cooperation has been initiated with Lietuvos Paštas AB, Tele2 Lietuva and
Elektrum Lietuva, which help each customer to acquire the services of Lietuvos draudimas AB in the most
convenient way.

lnnovations

Digitisation and teleworking, which began in 2O2O in response to the crisis, turned into a transforming
mechanism in2021, which called for the expansion of business principles. The ambition of Lietuvos draudimas
AB is to implement innovations in the insurance market, thus streamlining the activities of the company's
employees and improving customer experience.

Glaim settlement at the time most convenient time for customer
Since the beginning of the pandemic, Lietuvos draudimas AB has recorded a growing customer activity on the
lnternet: both in purchasing products and in self-service and claims administrition. Adapting to new cūstomer
habįts in 2021, Lietuvos draudimas AB significantly innovated the field of claims įdministration by
implementing significant changes. The first change was implemented in August 2021, when the entire claims
registration process was moved to the self-service website savas LD.

Management of claims in self-service to customers means the most important things in this modern world: the
freedom to handle claims at the convenient time, on day of the week (24t7), and daįa security. The self-service
is protected by the customer's unique login credentials, making it the safest way to communicate with the
insurer.

Self-service registration of the customer's claims also ensures faster claim administration, as the process itself
becomes more straightforward - when all the customer's information is available in one place, the expert
manages, reviews and analyses it faster, which means that the indemnification reaches the customer faster
than usual.

For customers who use online services less frequently, the Company has prepared all the information materials
that explain the new process step by step. The team of Lietuvos draudimas call centre was ready to help every
customer by providing consultations during the claim registration. Moreover, the Company haj installed seli-
service computers or tablets at all customer service points, which can be used to connect to the self-service
platform, and the experts working there are always ready to assist if any questions arise.

At the end of 2021, assessing the success of the change, the Company recorde d thaĮ82o/o of private customers
are already using the self-service Savas LD to register their claims. ln the business customer sector, the
change is also obvious - 660/0 of customers register claims in the self-service.

First claims settled without employee involvement

ln the autum n of 2021, for the first time in the history of Lietuvos draudimas AB, motor claim was settled without
the participation of employees, i.e., in a completely robotised manner. The robotic method is the calculator for
Compulsory Driver's Third-Party Liability lnsurance and Casco lnsurance claims that was launched in self-
service Savas LD.

The newly installed calculator enables the customer to not only notify about the fact of the damage, but also,
after specifying the damages, to immediately receive the calculation of the indemnity performed ūith ttre use
of an algorithm. The customer performs the entire claim administration independenily: registers the claim in
the self-service, assesses the loss, submits the documents and photos of damages, indlcateį the bank account
and receives an indemnity after agreeing to the evaluated damage. No claimį employee is involved in this
entire process.

ln order for the automatic algorithm to calculate the customer's damage, the tool was adapted to the needs of
Lietuvos draudimas customers. The Company's employees have determined and implemented the rules for
evaluating each possible damage to the vehicle, and it is according to these rules that ihe algorithm evaluates
and calculates the indemnification amount payable to the customer.
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Payment of indemnification takes place in three stages:

o Entering damages _ the customer enters the required informatįon into the system and marks the
damages;

o Evaluation according to the rules - the internal algorithm evaluates the damage marked by the customer
according to the established rules;

o Calculation mechanism - the indemnification calculated by the algorithm is sent to the customer, who
confirms whether it is appropriate for him/her;

. lf the customer does not agree with the amount specified by the algorithm, only then will the claim be
passed on to the claims specialist for further administration.

Robotic claims regulation allows Lietuvos draudimas AB to minimise the claim cycle and pay indemnification
to the customer within the shortest time, while also saving our team's work resources. lt is planned that in the
future this automatic process will be developed in such a Way that after the customer's decision to clįck "I

agree", he/she will receive a payment within a few hours or even minutes, i.e., no longer than it takes for an
instant payment.

goLD - a modern sales system

|n2021, the Company started running all its sales to private customers and part of its business sales only by
using its own innovative and intuitive sales system goLD. The functions of the system make the daily work of
Lietuvos draudimas AB consultants, intermediaries and brokers simpler, faster and more efficient.

The system allows to create an offer for a customer in just a few steps, i.e., by entering the basic information
about the client, an offer is generated with the help of severalclicks, and the submitted offer can be converted
into an insurance contract by a single click.

The new sales management system clearly provides the seller with all relevant information about the customer:
insurance, ending contracts, upcoming payments, etc. This step allows the Company's sales team and brokers
cooperating with Lietuvos draudimas AB to execute sales faster and more efficiently, while providing the
customer with a more innovative insurance service purchasing experience and the employees with a modern
user-friendly tool.

Activities of the Estonian Branch

At the end of 2020, Health lnsurance product was launched to participate in strongly growing health market.
ln the first half year Lietuvos draudimas AB Estonian branch focus on Health lnsurance product further
development in production system and self-service platform enabling to participate in larger fleet tenders. The
product was launched in July 2021 and the second half of the year has been very successful as sales are
exceeded Plan.

Several initiatives initiated in claim handling for efficiency improvement:

o Direct handling with some reliable car repair shops was initiated and first agreements with car repair
shops are signed in order to increase efficiency in MOD and MTPL claim handling activities;

. Client value (traffic light) development was completed and it has been launched into TIA - all claim and
client fields show 3 values: clients total GWP, claim and policy pieces;

o Further development of automatic invoice payment process in claims handling to launch the project at
the beginning of 2022. The main goal is to reduce the manual work of claim handlers and automate
claim handling process.

Ongoing self-service portal phase ll developments in pre-filled claim forms with policy details; cloning e-store
for logged in users; form of termination of contract, create self-service advertising spaces - lives are planned
in2022. Further planned self-service development starting in2022 is claims registering functionalities for repair
shops.

lmprovements in debt management by launching SMS delivery project by sending SMS to policyholder to
notice unpaid invoices. Project is delivering expected results.

It was started to sell MTPL insurance as monthly prepaid instalments in the online store and in the direct sales
channel.
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Claim indemnification in Lithuania

During the year 2021, the number of cases of claims registered in Lithuania increased by 43.98% compared
to 2020 and reached a total of 31'1.6 thousand claims. The largest part of claims handled by the Company in
Lithuania in 2021 were health claims - 54.670/o and transport claims - 22.30%.

ln 2021, 73.20% of all claims (except health claims) were settled by the Company within a month, 28.23o/o -
wįthin 5 days, and 5.5% of claims _ on the day of reporting. The pandemic brought a new approach to claim
inspections. The Company administered more claims from photos of damaged property, vehicles and insured
items provided by customers.

During the year 2021, the Company's clients were compensated with EUR 2.87 million for claims caused by
storms and other naturaldisasters. ln2021, the most significant damage was caused by heavy snoMall in the
winter, the loss amounted to EUR 1.27 million.

ln 2021, the settlement and įndemnification of the largest claim (EUR 0.553 million) to a legal person due to
the fire that occurred in 2018, during which the grain warehouse had burned down.

The largest damage that took place and was compensated to a private client in 2021 amounted to EUR 0.145
million for a burnt down business structure.

The largest claim of the legal person that occurred and settled in 2021was the sum amounting to EUR 0.551
million due to the fire in the biogas plant facility.

Compared to 2020, the Company identified 68.27o/o more fraudulent cases (1294 in 2021); however, their
value (amounts unpaid) reached ĖUR2.342 million, or 56'920/o, more than in2020' The most frequent types
of fraud according to the identified number of fraud cases: 52.0g percent - increased value of damages -
17.08o/o; - falsification of circumstances of the event - 9.74o/oi - attempting to receive indemnification by
purchasing insurance after the event. Even though according to the statistics, falsification of circumstances
amounts to only 17.08o/o, these cases are of a higher value as the falsification of circumstances comprises
34.91o/o of value of all identifįed fraudulent actions in 2021 (comprising 34.9oo/o in 2020). The largest revealed
fraud of 2o21,when the event circumstances Were attempted to be tampered with to increase ūe damages,
amounted to EUR 0.455 million.

Claim indemnification in Estonia

Lietuvos draudimas AB Estonian branch registered 29 083 claims in2021, which is7.2o/o more than in2O2O.
The largest share of claims in the Estonian branch were motor claims, comprising 68.5% (in 2020: 65.20/o) of
all the claims, private property claims - 18.8% (in 2O2O: 19.1Vo) and travel insurance claims - 3.gyo (in 20iD0:
8.60/0).

Human resources

ln2021, Lietuvos draudimas AB had 866 employees (958 in2020). The average aggregate working time of
Lietuvos draudimas AB employees is 10.6 years, average age _ 42 years. This indicator is stable anū has not
changed for the past 6 years. ln 2021, the turnover rate was 19.Bo/o (voluntary turnover - iS.3%).

Employee engagement

Lietuvos draudimas AB monitors and analyses the engagement of its employees since 2000 and initiates
actions that promote employee engagement.

The engagement survey of Lietuvos draudimas AB is used as a tool allowing to objectively measure the
Company's success in creating a culture of trust and engagement, assess the strategic coherence, motivation
and relations, as well as implementation of objectives. Lietuvos draudimas AB does its best for the employees
to be proud of working at the Company, to recommend it to their friends and acquaintances, and to become
true ambassadors of the Company.

We monitor the engagement survey in two directions: how many of engaged employees we have and what is
the percentile rank compared to other organisations around the world. Percentile rank assessment is an
organisation's diagnostics in which only quantitative data (the score given in answers to the questions) are
assessed, while all questions and qualitative data, such as response time scores, comments and their nature,
i.e., positive, negative or even not recorded, are taken into consideration to determine the engagement levels.
We compared the result of our company this year with the result of 2019, because then we used the same
methodology with the results of other companies conducting this study.
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According to the survey, this year 27o/o of Lietuvos draudimas employees are engaged, and compared to 20.19,this number has more than tripled. These employees are engagedand feel sa-tis"fied. They are motivated towork better than expected and also set a great example ror 6tĖers and are determined to go the extra mileevery day for the good of the company.

640/o of employees fall into the middle of the scale. This means that these employees perform their job welland are a very important part of the organisation. They need to be valued ano ėc6įnised when they achievetheir goals. However, these empĮoyees are reluctant to tat<e the extra step.
9% of the organization's employees are classified as non-engaged.-These employees are silenfly or passivelynon-engaged. They go with the flow or have given up, but riaiy of them nauĮ tĖe įotential to become moreengaged if the causes of dissatisfaction are eliminated.

The percentile ratio is measured by comparing the organisation's performance with that of other companiesaround the world. The lowest possible percentile rank'is 1%,lhe highest is 99%. The percentile rank is usedto evaluate 4 areas of the organisation:

' Engagement culture - does the organisation have a culture that ensures respect for employees,motivates them, gives them opportunities and offers challenges?o Motivation and relationships - do managers motivate employees to achieve the best results? Dothey build strong relationships and a unitedleam?
' strategic coherence - do employees understand the direction an organisation is moving and howthey contribute to its success?
' lmplementation - do managers clearly define expectations, ensure employee accountability andachieve tangible results?

The percentile rank 98% demonstrates that the activities that Lįetuvos draudimas AB carries out for itsemployees are appreciated, and are suitable and clear to the employees. The employees essentially valuewhat the company provides for them: environment, culture, carrier opportunities, and they understand thecompany's strategic directions, etc. At the same time, this indicator shows that in terms of this aspect we arebetter than 98o/o of the companies participating in this survey, which is a really greai resuĮt.
lnternal career

Lietuvos draudimas AB pays a lot of attention to the internal career of its employees and promotes growth ofits employees inside of the Company: ln 2021, 630/o of vacancies were filled by internal candidates (in 2O2O -59%)' ln 2021 , 90 employees made internal vertical or horizontal careers (in 2020 - T4). 3 specialists becamemanagers (7 in 2020), and 7 managers became managers in the next level/in another iiero į+ in zoioj._ 
--

The Company is a member of the Human Resource Management professionals Association (pVpA)participating actively in the activities and events of this organisation. one of the Company,s employees is alecturer of the HR Standard Programme organised by PVPĮ.
Additional benefits

ln today's society, wh-en teleworking or hybrid working is becoming an integral part of all organisations, thereis increasingly more focus not only on the specifics 6f sucrr work, but aĮsč on'the well-being of employees.When we work at home, we often feel the boundary between work and personal lįfe has become blurred, andwhen we lack social contact with colleagues and a sense of community and belonginį to an organisation, wehave a harder time coping with rising eūotions and we move less.
This is the second year that Lietuvos draudimas AB is working remotely and we plan to contįnue working in ahybrid method in the future, thus, We care that each ot our emįtoyees is able to adapt and feel well. Realisingthe urgency of all this, the Company invited employees to take care of their emotionįl ,"J pry#i;;iililĮ
together and presented a continuous programme;lfeel good". The employees attended lectures on emotionsat work, psychological resilience and symp.athy' The eūployees were alįo invited to improve their physicalwell-being by participating in walking challenįes organised by the Company, įuįr, ", the ,,LD CenturyChallenge" and the "Watk15 Organisaiions Chaiienge,,i

Taking into account the trends of teleworking and hybrid working, and taking care of the quality workplace ofemployees at home, the Company has alloĮated j financial giit of EUR z-oo to each employee (excludingassistants) to improve their workplace at home.
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ln order to achieve a better work-life balance, the Company has approved a workation of 182 days per year in
the European Union for all employees with the appropriate type of position. Workation is one of t_ne ininįs tnat
came with teleworking' leadership based on trust and has been establish as a normal practice whįn an
employee chooses to work remotely while being in another country.

Employees particularly appreciate the additional benefits of the Company - 5 additional days of leave per
ca|endar year. This benefit is available to employees who have worked ior more than two įears. Lietuvos
draudimas AB encourages employees to maintain a work-life balance and well-being, therefore the Company
ensures that employees devote extra time to their rest.

Lietuvos draudimas AB continued to take care of the health of its employees and insured all its employees
(after assessment and completion of the probationary period) wįth the Health lnsurance. The Company also
continued the added benefit of health days, i.e., a leave for improvement of health in the case of milį and
short-term health problems. Such health days are provided to all employees, up to 4 day per year in cases
where the employee does not seek help at a health care institution and rēcovers at home. The company also
provided free flu vaccinations. As every year, Lietuvos draudimas AB insured its employees against acciįents.
Strengthening the competencies of employees
The pandemic continued in 2021, which resulted in the emergence of teleworking or hybrid working. These
forms of working have also led to distance learning and participation in confere-nces. As much aJ gS% oi
training took place in a remote format. ln 2021,1102 company employees attended at least one training.
Lietuvos draudimas AB provided approximately 27 hours of training per employee per year. The employeeĮ
improved their qualification by attending internal and external trainings and šeminars, the lectures in the
programme "l feel good" organised for all employees, as well as during the "Leadership Conference", gained
experience in foreign and Lithuanian conferences. They also took ēourses at the electronic acaėjmy or
Lietuvos draudimas AB - eLDa, and on other learning platforms.

ln 2021, the Personal Development section has been created for employees on the intranet, where employees
have the opportunity to watch video lectures, find recommended readių material and webcasts.

We participated in 18 conferences in Lithuania and 8 conferences abroad, with a total of 307 employees
attending the conferences. ln 2021, the training topics were mainly related to the strengthening of profess-ional
and general competencies, such as how to motivate oneself in a changing environmeĒt, resilĒnce to change,
personal effectiveness, building and maintaining relationships, negotiation, emotional cognition, psychologiĮal
resilience, etc. We have also focused on strengthening the competencies of new managers.

The employees developed new skills not only in training with the help of external lecturers, but also shared
their experience with colleagues during the internal initiatives "Afternoon lnterviews", "E-coffee',, etc.

Estonian Branch

Inspired by positive feedback from last year Estonian branch repeated donation activities to medical staff,
ambulance and rescue services. This time organization contributed with refreshment and fruits to support
frontline staff with vital vitamįns in these difficult times.

Sustainable activities and environmental protection

Although the impact on nature and environmental pollution from the companies working in the same field as
Lietuvos draudimas AB is minimal, we always search for ways for efficient consumption of resources we use
every day and contribute to a more cherished environment. ln 2021,the Company paid a lot of attention to
planning and emphasising specific actions that it will more actively seek in the fielį of sustainability in 2022-
2024.

ln 2021, taking into account the activities of the shareholder PZU SA, Lietuvos draudimas AB has updated its
Environmental Protection Policy, the aim of which is to reduce the Company's impact on the environment and
provide its divisions with a consistent operating system based on which environmental impact must be
measured and registered. The Company has also approved a new Human Rights Policy in accordance with
the relevant policies of PZU SA. The aim of this policy is to protect human rigĒts and create an organisation
that supports diversity.
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ln October 2021, the Company took over and started following the PZU Group Sustainable Development
Policy, according to whįch it planned actions allowing to manage environmental and sustainability risks.
According to this document, the Company intends to take sustainability actions in the following directions:

o to reduce the impact of climate change by supporting the customers' sustainable choices through the
Company's offers;

o to develop and offer customers greener service implementation solutions;
o to minimise environmental impact when choosing partners and suppliers;
o to carry out social responsibility actions related to the promotion of a healthier lifestyle and prevention

of diseases both in the society and in our team;
r to maintain the balance of work and leisure and to take care of the emotional experience of the Lietuvos

draudimas employees at work.

ln line with the EU's Green Deal, in 2021,the Company began reviewing its existing risk management system
in order to operate in accordance with the global sustainability risk management system lSO40O1 and to
become certified to this standard in the coming year.

Lietuvos draudimas AB included the relevant United Nations Sustainable Development Goals iniĮs2022-2024
strategy, in which it will carry out socially responsible and sustainable activities in the coming year.

"Less Paper!"

The Company started the year 2021 with a new, more sustainable habit and launched the "Less paper"
initiative. By the end of 2020,we calculated that by using paper in our processes, in terms of sustainability
figures, we consume enough paper in one month to cut 31 trees. This figure became a reflection of the very
significant changes in Lietuvos draudimas company. The "Less Paper" project covered almost every area of
Lietuvos draudimas and became a significant part of new habits and a different culture.

ln the scope of the project, the company reviewed its processes and assessed ways to reduce the number of
paper documents. Based on the information gathered, the following actions have been taken:

o implementation of the electronic signature;
. focusing on development of the self-service website savaslD.lt and transfer of the processes to the

digital space;
. reviewing the processes and moving some of them to the digital space: changing the debt notification

process, thus reducing the number of paper letter notifications, and digitisation of the most commonly
used documents that had to be sent by regular mail, etc.;

. increasing e-declaration awareness among our customers and encouraging its use;

. setting limits for printing using printers;
o introducing a duplex printing method;
o reducing the number of printers;
o reminding both employees and customers about digital solutions, e.g., that there is no need to have

the compulsory third-party liability insurance in the vehicle, etc. We also encouraged employees to
think before printing the document whether it is really necessary, thus strengthening the new habit.

The amount of paper used for printing in 2021 amounted lo 2.92 tonnes, and compared to last year's indicator,
decreased by 4O2o/o. ln total, at the end of the year, the Company had 80% of customers whose service was
handled without paperwork, allowing to reduce the amount of paper for customer service by lO%. Counting in
trees, we reduced the use of paper so much that from the 31 trees we used to "cut'' per month, it was onŲ 8
trees in 2021.

Use of other resources

Since 2011, Lietuvos draudimas AB has been using energy from renewable energy sources as a part of its
energy consumption. This is supported by the "Powered by Green" certificate. The Company strives to recycle
as large a portion of secondary raw materials as possible, and choose more efficient means of transportation
and more economical ways to travel for work assignments.

The Company consumed 1,582 MWh of electricity in 2021
MWh, which is 5.7% more.

ln 2020, power consumption amounted to '1,493

ln 2021, the energy consumption for heating of premises comprised 5,682 GJ, and, as compared to 2020,
decreased by 3.5%.
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ln the course of the year 2021 , in all its divisions in Lithuania, the Company used 3,364 m3 of water, which is
by 57o/o less than in the previous year. The natural gas consumption in the said period amounted to 36.8
thousand m3.

The vehicles used by the Company employees travelled a total of 1,724 million km. The maximum, i.e., 1,368
million km, has been driven by diesel vehicles, and 338 thousand km - by petrol vehicles. ln 202'1, during the
business trips, employees flew 45.503 thousand km.

ln 2021, Lietuvos draudimas AB removed 824 m3 of waste, which is 4.8o/o more than in 2020. The Company
also contributed to the recycling of waste - in the course of the year, its employees separated and recycled
1.7 tonnes of paper.

Environmental protection in the Estonian branch

The electricity consumption of the Estonian branch amounted to 176 MW, in 2020 itwas 194 MW. The heating
energy consumption of the Estonian branch amounted to 253 GJ, in 2020 it was 194 GJ. The water
consumption of the Estonian branch amounted to 344 m3in 2021, in 2020 it was 336 m3.

The Estonian branch paper consumption remained in the same level as in 2020 - 0.8 t.

General Data Protection Regulation

lmplementing the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR), which came into force on 25 May 2018,
Lietuvos draudimas AB act consistently ensuring high level of data protection, i.e., regularly reviewing and
updating its internal procedures regulating processing of personal data to ensure that they conform to the
current provisions of the legal framework (laws and requirements set forth by the State Data Protection
lnspectorate) and relevant interpretation of the court rulings.

|n2021, the Privacy Policy of Lietuvos draudimas AB and the Procedure for Legal Protection of Personal Data
of Lietuvos draudimas AB regulating the basic principles of personal data protection, the Procedure for
ldentifying and lnvestigating Personal Data Security Violations and the Procedure for Assessing the lmpact on
Personal Data Protection have been updated, and all the company's employees have been familiarised
therewith. The employees of the Lietuvos draudimas AB annually broaden their knowledge in the field of
protection of personal data by taking the assessment test compulsory to all employees.

Seeking to ensure protection of personal data and all information related to protection of insurance, as well as
safe and convenient provision of insurance-related information to customers, the self-service portal Savas LD
of Lietuvos draudįmas AB is continuously expanded with additional functions.

Corruption prevention

Lietuvos draudimas AB takes a strict stance in its corruption and bribery prevention policy, which is binding for
all Company employees and applies to all its activities. Lietuvos draudimas AB employees have no right to
give, offer or accept any type of bribes or "process acceleration payments", as well as any inappropriate gifts
or offerings. This commitment applies not only in interactions with the state officials but also with any natural
or legal persons.

Lietuvos draudimas AB internal Company intranet webpage has published the rules and advice list on how
and when employees can give or take presents or other services. without violating the anti-corruption legal
acts. The Company has determined that employees who might encounter bribing and corruption in their
activities should have access to anti-corruption policy implementation relevant trainings.

The Company's team members must immediately inform the law enforcement officials or their own
management regarding any attempts of bribing. The Company has undertaken the obligation to combat bribery
and corruption according to the legal acts įn force in Lithuania, codes of conducts, and according to the best
practice, which is disclosed in the Company's Corruption and Bribery Prevention Policy.

Lietuvos draudimas AB community also joins the fight against corruption, as well as adherence to the
supporting principle, which prohibits to support and allocate funds to political parties, military organisations,
organisations representing any single religion and persons who seek individual support.

Human rights

Acting as a socially responsible company, Lietuvos draudimas AB supports the human rights principles
proclaimed in the Universal Declaration of Human Rights, the ILO Labour Core Conventions, and is a signatory
of the UN Global Compact. The Company undertakes to ensure to prevent any human rights violations in its
activities.
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Lietuvos draudimas AB respects and upholds the right to equal opportunities and non-discriminatory
behaviour, the right to security of persons, children's rights, freedom of association and the right to collective
bargaining. ln its activities, the Company ensures that no forced labour is used in its activities, that a safe and
healthy workplace is provided to the employees, and that the employees are paid a fair wage, that no bribes
are paid and the Company's products are not used to abuse human rights.

The Gompany continues construction of the new office and residential complex

ln autumn of 2019, Lietuvos draudimas AB obtained the construction permit for construction of the
administrative and residentia| complex on the land parcel on J. Basanavičiaus g. 10 in Vilnius held in its
management. The construction of the complex was commenced on 2 January 2020.fhe complex construction
will be ensured by the contractor selected in procurement procedure - Panevėžio statybos trestas UAB. The
authors of the complex project are the team of architects from the Lithuanian and Danish companies Archinova
and PLH Arkitekter A/S.

This complex of administrative and residential buildings for presented to the public in the summer o12018. The
project has been reviewed and approved by all competent authorities and the construction permit has already
been issued.

The complex will comprise the administrative premises with an area of 3,600 sq. m and residential premises
with an area of 2,000 sq. m, including the underground parking lots. All the employees of Lietuvos draudimas
will be moved to the largest building of the complex.

It will be equipped workplaces suitable for the hybrid working model, and feature modern meeting rooms and
lounges. The office complex and building with modern studio apartments will be built next to this building,
which will be alljoined by an inner yard. All the premises will be arranged autonomously and provided with
separate drive-ins, entrances and car parking spaces. The buildings will feature the optimal microclimate from
renewable energy sources, which will conform to efficiency class A+. Part of the underground parking spaces
will be used for the public needs in accordance with the contract concluded with the Vilnius City Municipality.

The construction of the complex is expected to be completed in the autumn of 2022. Lietuvos draudimas AB
investment into the project will amount to EUR 18.5 million.

The site under development is managed by Lietuvos draudimas AB according to the land use agreement
concluded with the National Land Service under the Ministry of Agriculture. lts development with construction
of administrative, commercial and residential buildings was approved in the detailed plan of the land parcel in
2007 by the Vilnius City Municipality.

Being a Ieader, creating value for empIoyees, cIįents and sharehoIders

ln 2021 , the Company renewed its mission and values. "We work towards your secure and peaceful future" -
by stating this mission, the Company speaks of the security for everyone - both its employees, to whom it
promises to be the best employer, and its customers, whose trust is considered to be the main evaluation of
itŠ activities, and the shareholders, thanks to whose investments Lietuvos draudimas AB constantly strives to
be market leader, and to operate profitably and sustainably.

Lietuvos draudimas AB is guided by three values in its activities:
o Desire to win for the benefit of customers, employees and shareholders;
r Freedom to act, enabling curiosity and leadership in market innovation;
. Cooperation based on a transparent, fair and effective partnership.

Kęstutis
Chief Executive

28March2022
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lnsurance income

Gross written premiums
Reinsurers share in premiums

Net written premiums
Change in gross unearned premiums reserve
Change in unearned premiums reserve, reinsurers' share

Change in unearned premiums reserye
Net premiums earned
Other technical income
Total insurance income

lnsurance expense

Gross claims paid to policyholders
Claims settlement expense
Recovered losses

Claims paid
Reinsurers share

Net claims paid
Change in outstanding claims reserve
Change in outstanding claims reserve, reįnsurers' share

Net incurred claims

Acquisition costs
Administrative expense
Other expense related to insurance activities
Total operating expense

Total lnsurance expense

Net result of insurance activities

lnterest income
Other profit (loss) from investment activity
Change in expected credit loss
Net impairment profit (loss)
Financial income
Financįal expense
Other income
Other expense
Profit / (loss) before tax

lncome tax expense
Profit / (loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income (OGl)
Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
ltems that wilĮ not be reclassified to profit or loss
Total comprehensive profit / (loss) for the reporting year

All profit / (loss) is attributable to the owners of Lietuvos draudimas AB.

Notes on 29 to 70 are an integral part of these financial

Kęstutis Tatjana Kozlova
Chief Executive Officer Accounting and reporting manager

Note

8
9
10

2021

272 161
(9101)

2020

4
4
4
5
5
5

253 2s1
(e 320)

263 060
(7185)

(18)

243 931
I 971

277
(7 203\ 2248

255 857
24

246',179
14

255 881

(142 e30)
(1 1 e86)

I 723

246'.193

(130 280)
(12258)

6 972
6
6

7
7

(146 1e3)
1 812

(1 35 566)
2 115

(144 381)
(10 324)

1 132

(1 33 451 )
(1 3 528)

2 470
(153 573) (144 509)

(55 e53)
{16 247)
(2 166)

(54 543)
(17 145)
(2 391)

(74 366) (74 07e)

(227 e3e) (218 588)

27 942 27 605

11

11

12
12
't3

13
14
14

2 477
915
(16)

(203)
4

(e10)
637
(76)

2 139
562
(18)

76
17

(823)
485

(833)

15

30 770

(3 867)
26 903

(3 ee8)
229

23',t34

29 210

(3 478)

20
20

25 732

456
394

26 582

rqąr/i.%
Kęstutis Gadeikis
Chief Actuary

28 March2022
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ASSETS

lntangible assets

Property and equipment

lnvestment property

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
Total investments

Note

't6

17,38

't8

31.12.2021

4 989

'18225

1 500

293 890
25781

31.12.2020

3 590

16 126

1 500

269 495
24335

19
19

Receivables due from policyholders
Receivables due from intermediaries
Reinsurance receivables
Other receivables

Total receivables

Reinsurers' share in unearned premium reserve
Reinsurers' share in outstanding claims reserve

Reinsurers' share of reserves
Prepaid income tax

Deferred acquisition costs
Other accrued income and deferred expense

Accrued income and deferred expense

Gash and cash equivalents 25

TOTAL ASSETS

Notes on pages 29 to 70 are an integral part of these financial statements

Kęstutis Tatjana Kozlova
Chief Executive Officer Accounting and reporting manager

28 March2022

21
21
22
24

319 67't

53 473
I 277
1 171
2894

293 830

50 791
1 188
3 384
2 500

58 815 57 863

5
7

8
23

1 078
14 943

1 096
13811

16 02',1 '14907
298

22 663
2 276

213

20 981
't 946

24 939

9 223

22927

't 5 982

453 681 426 938

/lf/' r,t fl)
Jc- YąĮĮ.ų.ui

Kęstutis Gadeikis
Chief Actuary
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Note

27

'144 525

'134 488
'133 807

136 391

3'.1.'12.2021 3'.1.12.2020

EQUITY, RESERVES AND LIABILITIES

EQUITYAND RESERVES

Share capital
Share premium
Reserves
Retained earnings
TOTAL EQUITY AND RESERVES

LIABILITIES

Unearned premium and unexpired risk reserves
Outstanding claims reserve
Technįcal reseryes

Direct insurance creditors
Reinsurance creditors
Taxes
Corporate income tax liability
Deferred income tax liability
Accrued expenses and deferred income
Other liabilities
Total creditors

1't 665
937

5 335
'126 588

11 665
937

9 209
'114 580

26
26
26

5
7

127 303
123 484

3 519
1 947

254

3 828
2258

236

268 295 250787

796
16 202
16 440

15
28

29,38

'103

17 254
17 784
40 861 39 760

TOTAL LIABILITIES

TOTAL EQUITY, RESERVES AND LIABILITIES

Notes on pages 29 to 70 are an integral part of these financial statements.

Kęstutis Tatjana Kozlova
Chief Executive Officer Accounting and reporting manager

28 March 2022

309 156 290 547

453 681 426 938

j{qąr/į.%
Kęstutis Gadeikis
Chief Actuary
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Balance at 31 December 20'19

Net profit for the reporting period

Other comprehensive income

Transactions with owners of the
Company

Dividends paid

Balance at 31 December 2020

Net profit for the reporting period

Other comprehensive income

Transactions with owners of the
Gompany

Dividends paid

Balance at 31 December 2021

Share Share
capital premium
11 665 937

Legal
feserye

Fair value
reserye

Retained
earnįnqs Total

2333 5 992 88 882 109 809

884

25 732

(34)

25732

8s0

11 665 937 2333 6 876 't14 580 136 391

(3 874)

26 903

105

26 903

(3 76e)

(15 000) (15 000)

11 66s 937 2333 3 002 126 588 ',t44525

Notes on pages 29 to 70 are an integral part of these financial statements.

Kęstutis Tatjana Kozlova
Chief Executive Officer Accounting and reporting manager

28 March2022

rqąįr,.%
Kęstutis Gadeikis
Chief Actuary

27



Lietuvos draudimas AB
company's code't10051834, J. Basanavičiaus st.'l2, Vilnius

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2021
(All amounts in thousands of euro unless oįherwise sįaįed)

Cash flows from operating activities
Premiums received from direct insurance
Claims paid for direct insurance
Payments received from ceded reinsurance
Payments made for ceded reinsurance
Operating expenses paid
Taxes paid on ordinary activities
Amounts received on other operating activities of insurance

Net cash from / (used in) operating activįties:

Cash flows from investing activities
Disposal of investments
Acquisition of investments
lnterest received
Amounts from other investing activities

Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid

Payments made for lease liabilities including fees and interest
Net cash from / (used in) financing acįivities:

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Gash and cash equivalents aį the beginning of reporting year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of reporting year

Notes on pages 29 to 70 are an integral part of these financial statements.

Kęstutis Tatjana Kozlova
Chief Executive Officer Accounting and reporting manager

28 March2022

Note

25

202'.1

266 635
(146 671)

3 472
(8 056)

(51 814)
(22242)

366

2020

253 608
(1 35 897)

1 476
(8 2e7)

(50 056)
(20 e36)

234
41 690

14 814
(51 1e5)

4 616
(525)

40 132

33 990
(6e 055)

5 019
(404\

(32 2e0) (30 450)

(15 000)
(1 15e) (1 385)

(16 r5e) (1 38s)

(6 7se)

'15 982

I 223

8 297

7 685

15 982

vqąr/ur.%
Kęstutis Gadeikis
Chief Actuary
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Lietuvos draudimas AB (hereinafter "the Company") is an insurance joint stock company which was registered
in Vilnius, the Republic of Lithuania in '1996. The Company offers a wide range of non-life insurance services
both to corporate clients and to private individuals.

Name of the Company: lnsurance Joint Stock Company LIETUVOS
DRAUDIMAS.
J. Basanavičiaus str. 12, LT-03600 Vilnius, Lithuania
(+370) 5266 6612, 1 828, (+379) 5231 4138
1 0051 834
Department of large tax payers
POWSZEOHNY ZAKĮ_AD UBĖzPlĖczEN S.A., a
joint-stock company, Poland (1 00%)

The Company's shares are not listed. The Company belongs to a group whose parent company trades its
shares on the Warsaw Stock Exchange and whose main shareholder is the State Treasury of Poland owning
more than 34o/o of the shares.

The Company has a branch in Estonia, by the name Lietuvos Draudimas AB Eestifiliaal. Registration number
12831829, registered address Parnu mnt 141, Tallinn, Estonia.

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIF!CANT AGCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
Consistent accounting principles have been applied to the financial years presented in these financial
statements. Financial statements have been authorised by the Management Board. The shareholders have
the power to reject the financial statements prepared and issued by the management and the right to request
that new financial statements be issued.

2.1 Basis of preparation

2.1.1 Statement of compliance
These financial statements were prepared in accordance with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards
(hereinafter .lFRS") as adopted by the European Union (hereinafter "EU"), and Lithuanian legislation
applicable to insurance companies.

2.1.2 Functional and presentation currency
All amounts in the financial statements and disclosures are presented in thousands of euro (EUR thousand),
unless otherwise stated, which is the Company's functional currency.

2.1.3 Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for financial statements
captions that are stated at fair value: financial investments measured at fair value and investment property.

Reporting year
The reporting period comprises Įhe 12 months from 1 January 2021 Įo 31 December 2021 .

2.1.4 Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS as adopted by the EU requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. lt also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of
applying the Company's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity,
or areas where estimates and judgments are significant to the financįal statements are disclosed in Note 3.

Legal address of the Company:
Phone, fax:

Tax payer's code in Lithuania:
State Revenue Service department:
Shareholder:
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2'2 New standards and interpretations, reclassification of batances in the financial statements
2'2'1 standards and interpretations effective in the reporting period and adopted by the Gompany
Standards adopted by the EU for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022:
(i) Amendments to References įo Conceptuat Frameworkln /FRS Standards
The revised conceptual Framework includ.es a new chapter on measurement; guidance on reporting financialperformance; improved definitions and guidance - in paiticular the definition ot"a tiauitity; and clarifications iriimportant areas, such as the roles oi stewardship, prudence and measurement uncertainty in financiaireporting' The amendments did not have a material impact on the company's tinancial statements.
(ii) Amendmenfs įo /AS 1 and lAS 8: Definition of Materiat

The amendments clarify the definition of material and how it should be applied by including in the definitionguidance that until now has featured elsewhere in lFRS. ln addition, tr.'e e*įranaįion. ,""o.panying thedefinition have been improved. Finally, the amendments ensure that the definition of material is consistentacross all |FRS Standards. lnformation is material if omitting, misstating or. oūĮĮuiinį it could reasonably beexpected to influence the decisions that the primary u'"r. či general purpose financial statements make onthe basis of those financial statements, wtricrr provide rinanįlJl information about a specific reporting entity.The amendments did not have a material impait on the corįįny' financial statements'
(iii) Amendmenįs įo /FRS 3: Definition of buslness
The amendments revise definition of a business. A business must have inputs and a substantive process thattogether significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The new guioįnįe pįorides a framework toevaluate when an input and a substantive process are present. The definitičn of the tėim ,outputs, is narrowedto focus on goods and services provided to customers, generating investment income and other income, andit excludes returns in the form of lower costs and otheįconomic benefits. lt is also no longer necessary toassess whether market participants are capable of replacing missing elements or integrating the acquiredactivities and assets' An entity ca! apply a 'concentraiion teĮt;. The assets acquired would not represent abusiness if substantially all of the fair va'iue of gross assetsįįquired is concenirated in a single asset (or agroup of similar assets). The amendments dū not have a material impact on the Company,s 1nancialstatements.

(iv) Amendmenįs įo /FRS ą /As 39 and iFRS 7: lnterest rate benchmark reform, Phase 1

The amendments were triqge.red by replacement of benchmark interest rates such as LIBoR and other inter-bank offered rates ('lBoRs'). Thb amendments prouūį įĮįp9|rrv- relief from applying specific hedgeaccounting requirements to_hedging relationships directly affected by the IBOR reform. The amendments didnot have an impact on the Company,s financial statements.

(v) Amendmenįs įo /FRS 16 - payment modifications due to the CoVt _19 pandemic
This amendment permits a lessee to treat all changes.in lease payments arising from facilities as if they didnot constitute a modification of lease, without maki-ng the judgmentj required oi tne itanoard. The paymentmodifications in question must be a direct consequence or įne bovlD_19 pandemic. The amendments did nothave a material impact on the company's financiar statements.

2.2.2 New Standards and tnterpretations not yet adopted
Some new standards, amendments to standards and clarifications for annual periods beginning after 1 January2021 have not yet been effective and have not been applied in įreįaring these financial statements in advance.
(i) IFRS 17 lnsurance Contracts (Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023;to be applied prospectively. Early application is permittea. This-prono"unceient is not yet endorsedby the EU.)

lFRs 17 replaces lFRs 4, which was brought in as an interim standard in2oo4.lFRS 4 has given companiesdispensation to carry on accountįng for inĮurance contracts using national accounting standards, resultingin a multitude of different approaches.
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IFRS 17 solves the comparison problems created by IFRS 4 by requiring all insurance contracts to beaccounted for in a consistent manner, benefiting bįth investors and inšurance companies. lnsuranceobligations will be accounted for using current valuįs, instead of historical cost.
The new standard defines insurance contract as a contract under which one entity accepts significantinsurance risk from the p-olicyholder by agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertainfuture event adversely affects the policyholder. ine standard introduces a įefinition of contract boundary,defining its beginning as the beginning of coverage, the date when first premium becomes due, the momentwhen facts and circumstances indicate that thį contract belongs to the group of onerous contracts -whichever is earliest. The end of the contract boundary occurs wĒen the inūrei has the right or practical
ability to reassess the risk for a particular policyholdeior a policy group, ano ūe įiemium measurementdoes not cover the risk related to future periods.

ln accordance with IFRS 17, contracts will be measured by one of the following methods:
- General Measurement Model (further - GMM) - the basic measurement model, wherein the totalvalue of the-insurance liability is calculated as the sum of discounted value of the best estimate offuture cash f|ows, risk adjustment (further _ RA) and contractual service margin (further - csū);- Premium allocation approach (further _ PAA) - a simplified model whiū can be applied tomeasurement of insurance contracts with the coverage period below 1 year or where its apįlicationdoes not lead to significant changes in relation tJ cvrvr. ln this rn'oo"t, liability to, remaininįcoverage is analogous to the provision for unearned premiums mechanism, without separatčpresentation of RA and CSM, while the liability for incurred claims is measured using the GMM(without catculating CSM);
- Variable fee approach (further - VFA) - model used for insurance contracts with direct profit sharing.The liability value is calculated in the same manner as in the GMM, the CSM value is additionalįsensitive to changes in economic assumptions.

The Company does not plan to adopt this standard early.

The company launched a separate projectto prepareforthe implementation of IFRS 17 standard, i.e. torevįew internal processes, analyse data, evaluate lT systems and reporting tools, etc. The Company expectsthat thįs new standard, when initially applied, might Ēave a material impĮct on the financial statements ofthe Company. One of the.changes, among others, will be in the presentation of insurance contract revenue,as written premiums will be no more part of the statement of comprehensive income. The Companyį ilįprofit will be impacted by new requirements on discounting, risk adjustment for non-financial risks andcontract recognition rules. Therefore, as part of the implementation project, the Company intensively workson practical implementation aspects of the new standard, also initucing'metnooolĮįical ones which aresolved together with PZU Group.

According to the implementation plan, the Company will run calculation and trial reporting according to therequirements of the new standard in 2022 to ensure its full readiness įn 2023.
(ii) Annual lmprovemenįs įo /FRS 201B-2020 Cycle (issued on 14 May 2020. Effective for taterperiods.)

The amendments pertain to:

- IFRS 1 - the amendment permits a_subsidiary that adopts IFRS for application later than its parent
and applies paragraph D16(a) of lFRS 1 to mēasure cumulative foreiįn 

"*.ūrng" 
differences usinį

the amounts reported in the parent's consolidated financial statements based on the date of theparent's transition to IFRS;
- Amendments to IFRS references to Conceptual Framework (amendments to IFRS 3);- Definition of accounting estimates (amendments to IAS g);
- IFRS 9 - the amendment clarifies that for the purposes of tne "'10 percent" test, only fees paid orreceived between the borrower and the lender, including fees paid'or receiveį by thL borrower orlender on behalf of the other party, should be consįdeied in making a decision on the possible

derecognition of a financial liability;
- IFRS 16 - the amendment has removed the example concerning the reimbursement of lease

improvements by the lessor (due to related uncertainties).

None of these changes are expected to have a material impact on the financial statements of the Company.
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Other standards

The following amended standards are not expected to have a significant impact on the Company's
consolidated financial statements:

- Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current (Amendments to IAS 1) (not yet endorsed by
EU);

- Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before lntended Use (Amendments to IAS 16);
- Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendment to IAS 37);
- Sale or Contribution of Assets between an lnvestor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments

to IFRS 1O and IAS 28) (not yet endorsed by EU);
- lnterest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and

tFRS 16).

2.3 lnsurance contracts, reinsurance

a) Classification of contracts

Contracts under which the Company accepts significant insurance risk from another party (the policyholder)
by agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely
affects the policyholder are classified as insurance contracts. All contracts concluded are classified as non-life
insurance contracts and the Company does not conclude any investment contracts.

b) Ceded reinsurance

The Company cedes reinsurance in the normal course of business for limiting its net loss potential. Assets,
liabilities, income, and expense arising from ceded reinsurance contracts are presented separately from the
related assets, liabilities, income and expense from the related insurance contracts because the reinsurance
arrangements do not relieve the Company from its direct obligations to its policyholders.

Reinsurance assets include the recoveries due from reinsurance companies in respect of claims paid and the
reinsurance share in the technical reserves.

Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are measured on the basis of the reserve for outstanding claims or the
settled claims from policies falling within the scope of a reinsurance contract.

Reinsurance commissions include commissions received or receivable from reinsurers based on the
reinsurance contracts. Non-life reinsurance commissions are deferred in a manner consistent with the deferral
of acquisition costs in non-life insurance.

Unearned reinsurance commissions are included in the statement of financial position under item Accrued
expenses and deferred income.

The main obligatory reinsurance contract forms in reinsurance are excess-of-loss treaties. For risks exceeding
the limįts of obligatory reinsurance treaties or falling outside their scope due to their nature, facultative
reinsurance is used.

c) Premiums

Written insurance premiums are insurance premiums for policies, which become effective during the year,
irrespective of whether the premium has become due or not. Premiums undenrvritten are decreased by the
premiums cancelled and terminated over the accounting year. Premiums are disclosed gross of commission
payable to intermediaries.

The earned portion of premiums written is recognised as revenue. Premiums are recognised as earned on a
pro-rata basis over the term of the related policy coverage. The unearned portion of premiums is recognised
as an unearned premium technical reserve.

Ceded reinsurance premiums are recognised as an expense in accordance with the pattern of reinsurance
service received and the portion of reinsurance premiums attributable to future periods are recognised as
assets under the reinsurance part of the unearned premium reserve.

d) lncurred claims

Claims incurred include claims attributable to the reporting year and loss claims handling expenses. Claims
paid are decreased by the amount received from salvage or subrogation.
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e) Administrative expense

Administrative expense is related to the collection of premiums, management of portfolios, processing of
bonuses and discounts and incoming and outgoing reinsurance. They include personnel expenses and
depreciation to the extent they are not included in acquisition, claims handling or investing expenses. Expenses
are accounted on an accrual basis.

Administrative expenses that are not directly related to a specific type of insurance are divided by type of
insurance proportionally to the amount of gross written premiums, net earned premiums and insured objects.

f) Client acquisition costs

Acquisition costs of insurance contracts arise from the conclusion of insurance contracts and consist of direct
costs such as commissions and indirect expenses incurred related to the conclusion of contracts.

g) Deferred client acquisition costs (DAG)

Direct incremental costs associated with acquisition of new or renewal of insurance contracts are deferred, to
the extent that such costs are deemed recoverable from future premiums or gross profits. Commissions and
other acquisition costs, such as, among others, sales personnel remuneration and social contributions and
maintenance, that in the Company's management judgement, vary with and are related to securing new
contracts and renewing existing contracts are capitalised as assets. All other client acquisition costs are
recognised as expenses when incurred. Deferred client acquisition cost assets are attributed to profit or loss
over the terms of the corresponding policies and lines of insurance as premium is earned.

h) Technical reserves

Unearned premium reserve comprises written gross premium related to the period from the reporting date to
the expiry of insurance agreement to cover all claims and expenses in accordance with insurance agreements
in force.

Unexpired risk reserve is set aside for unexpired risks arising from general insurance contracts where the
expected value of claims and expenses attributable to the unexpired periods of policies in force at the reporting
period end date exceeds the unearned premium reserve in relation to such policies.

On each reporting date, the Company prepares a liability adequacy test by assessing whether the insurance
liabilities recognised during the reporting year for valid policies are adequate.

lf the liability adequacy test shows a deficiency in the carrying amount of liabilities, the deficiency is recognised
as a loss for the financial year by setting unexpired risk reserve (Note 34), recognised in the same way as
changes in unearned premium reserve.

Outstanding claims reserve is an amount provided at the end of the reporting year in respect of estimated
losses incurred but not yet paid. Outstanding claims reserve includes reserves for reported but not settled
claims and reserve for incurred but not reported claims. The claims reserve is also created for claims handling
expenses that will be necessary in order to settle the claims incurred during the reporting and previous years.
Only MTPL annuities are discounted due to low discounting effect for other liabilities.

i) Fronting insurance

As a part of regular business operations, the Company insures risks, which it fully cedes to reinsurers, not
keeping the insurance risk or taking full risks to itself. Assets, liabilities, as well as income and expenses, which
arise from the fronting reinsurance agreements, are presented in statement of financial position of the
Company, as full ceding of the insurance risk does not release the Company from the direct liabilities to the
insurance policyholder.

2.4 lnterest income and expense

lnterest income and expense are recognised in the profit and loss for all interest-bearing įnstruments on an
accrual basis using the effective interest rate method. lnterest income includes coupons earned on fixed
income debt securities, interest on bank deposits and other loans and accrued discounts and premiums on
discounted instruments.
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2.5 Financial instruments

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: measured at amortized cost, at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) and at fair value through profit or loss (FWPL). The
classification of financial assets under IFRS 9 is generally based on the business model in which a financial
asset is managed and its contractual cash flow characteristics. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.

The Company classifies non-derivative financial liabilities into the following categories:

(i) Non-derivative financial assefs and financial liabilities - Recognition and derecognition

The Company initially recognises loans and receivables on the date when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised on the trade date when the entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all
of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred, or it neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the transferred asset.
Any interest in such derecognised financial assets that is created or retained by the Company is recognised
as a separate asset or liability. The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations
are discharged or cancelled, or expire.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to offset the amounts
and intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Measured at amortized cost

These assets are initially measured at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced
by impairment losses.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if the following two conditions are met and is not designated
at fair value through profit loss:

. The assets are held within a business modelwhose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; and,

. lts contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding.

Financial assets measurement at fair value

A financial asset is measured at fair value if the following two conditions are met and the financįal asset is not
measured at fair value through profit or loss:

o The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets;

. lts contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

ln addition, for a non-trading equity instrument, a company may elect to irrevocably present subsequent
changes in fair value (including foreign exchange gains and losses) in OCl. These are not reclassified to profit
or loss under any circumstances.
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Debt instruments measured at fair value throuqh other comprehensive income
Debt securities are held within a business model the objective of which is achieved by both collectingcontractual cash flows and selling debt securities. These aįsets do not generate any ottrer sort of income,which is why they are carried at fair value- through other comprehensivJincome. Thįse assets are initiallymeasured at fair value plus any directly attributablē transaction costs and subsequentrv įĮšrr"ĮiiJii"ĮiĮĮ.lnterest income calculated using thė effective interest method, foreign 

"r"Ėrnį" 
gains and losses andimpairment are recognised in profit or loss. other net gains and losses ari recognised in ogl. onderecognition, 9ains and losses accumulated in oCl are recĒssified to profit or tįsį. 

-

Equitv investments at fair value throuqh other comorehensive income
The Company holds equity instruments for strategic purposes for a long time. Trading equity securities is nota normal part of the business model. For theše reasons, the Corn'pany has op"ted'to' measure 

"quiiyinstruments at fair value through other comprehensive income.
For equity investments held for non{rade purpose the Company elects to apply fair-value{hrough-other-comprehensive income option. These assets are initially meaiured atfair value plus anydirecily attributabletransaction costs. Subsequently these financial instrūments are measured at fair value. Dividends arerecognised as income in profit or loss. other net gains and losses are recognised in ocl and are neverreclassified to profit or loss.

The Company's investments in collective investment undertakings do not meet the criteria to account for theseinvestments in other categories of financial assets than the asseįs measured at fair value through profit or loss.
These assets are initially measured at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. The fair valueoption is available on įnitįal recognition to irrevoc-ably designate a financial asset as recognised at fair valuethrough profit or loss if doing so eliminates or significantly reĮuces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
that would otheruvise arise from measuring assēts or recbgnising gains and losses on them on a different basis.
Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at fair value and changes therein, other than impairmentlosses and foreign currency differences on debt instruments, are recognised in profit or loss.
(ii) Non-derivative financiat tiabitities - Measurement

Other non-derivative financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value less any direcily attributabletransaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, Įhese liabilitįes are measured at amortised cost using theeffective interest method.

2.6 Fair value measurement

'Fair value' is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderlytransaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the mostadvantageous market to which the company has access at that date. The tair vatue of a liability reflects itsnon-performance risk.

A number of the Comp-any's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, forboth financial and non-financial assets įnd liabilities.

when one is available, the company measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in anactive market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for ūe asset or liability takeplace with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.
lf there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Company uses valuation techniques that maximise theuse of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuationtechnique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into account in pricing atransaction.

lf an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, then the company measuresassets and long positions at a bid price and liabilities and short positions at an ask price.
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The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the transaction
price - i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. lf the Company determines that the fair value
on initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price
in an active market for an identical asset or liability nor based on a valuation technique for which any
unobservable inputs are judged to be insignificant in relation to the measurement, then the financial instrument
is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value on initial recognition
and the transaction price. Subsequently, that difference is recognised in profit or loss on an appropriate basis
over the life of the instrument but no later than when the valuation is wholly supported by observable market
data or the transaction is closed out.

2.7 Receivables from direct insurance operations

When amounts due from policyholders and intermediaries become overdue, the policy is cancelled and
respective amounts are reversed against premiums written. No impairment allowances are made with respect
to amounts that have not yet become due and, accordingly, no portion of the premiums is taken to income.

2.8 lntangible assets

lntangible assets are stated at historical cost, less any subsequent accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. lntangible assets are recognised if it is probable that future economic benefits that
are attributable to the asset will flow to the enterprise and the cost of asset can be measured reliably. Assets
are amortized on a straightline basis over their estimated useful lives, which are from 1 lo 14 years. The useful
lives, residual values and amortisation method are reviewed annually to ensure that they are consistent with
the expected pattern of economic benefits from items in intangible assets.

2.9 Property and equipment

Assets are controlled and managed by the Company, it is reasonably expected to gain economic benefit from
the assets in the future periods, which will be used in the supply of services or for administrative purposes by
the Company for more than one-year period, the acquisition cost can be reliably measured and which is higher
than EUR 1 000 including VAT.

Assets are stated at acquisition cost less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Land is not depreciated.

Calculation of depreciation is started from the month following the month of putting the asset into operation
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the tangible asset. Estimated useful lives of key
groups of assets are as follows:

Buildings 30-80 years
Vehicles B years
Office equipment 3-6 years

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with
the expenditure will flow to the Company. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Leasehold improvements are depreciated on a straight-line basis during leasehold period.

Profit or loss from disposal of property and equipment is calculated as the difference between the book value
of the property and equipment and income generated from sale, and charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Property and equipment also include assets from operating leases of land and premises. The value of such
assets in the financial statements is shown at the present value of all future lease payments.

2.10 lnvestment property

lnvestment property constitutes real estate maintained in order to earn lease revenue and/or profit from
property value increase, and is accounted for at fair value, and the depreciation thereof is not calculated. The
fair value of investment property is reviewed each time financial statements are drawn up, and any changes
thereof are reflected in the profit and loss.

Any repair works for the investment property reflected in the financial statements at their fair value are
recognised as costs of the period during which they were incurred.
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2.11 Foreign currency revaluation

Foreign currency transactions are translated into euro applying the euro foreign exchange reference ratepublished by the European Central Bank at the transaction oaie.ioreign exchanĮe gains and losses resultingfrom the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at the reporting date foreign exchangereference rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies Įre recognised in profit orloss of the respective period.

1 USD
1 GBP
1 PLN

31.12.2021
EUR 0.8823
EUR 1 .'191 5
EUR 0.2176

31.12.2020
EUR 0.8149
EUR 1.1123
EUR 0.2193

2.12 Corporate income tax

corporate income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currenfly payable and deferred income taxchange.

lncome tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reportedin profit or loss because it excludes items of income o|. 
"ip"n." 

that are taxable or deductible in other yearsand it further excludes items that are never taxable or ded'uctible. The coūpįnv'. tiaoitity for current incometax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enaĮte,i oy ū" date of the statementof financial position. lncome tax rate applied for the companį ūas ,15% in 2021 (15o/o in 2o2O).
Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in thefinancial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and areaccounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilįįies arĮ gĮneratty recognised for alltaxabĮe temporary differences and deferred iax assets are recognised to the exient that it is probable thattaxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assetsand liabilities are not recognised if the temporary differenc" ,,i.". from goodwill (or negative goodwill) or fromthe initial recognition (other than in a business iombination) of other asįts ano jlauilities in a transaction thataffects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to theextent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to a"llow all or part of the assetto be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period inwhich the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax rawsiinai have been enacted orsubstantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assetsreflects the tax consequences that would follow įom the manner in which tne compįnį expects, at the end ofthe reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
Deferred tax is accounted for in profit or loss, except when it relates to items accounted for direcly in equity,in which case the deferred tax is also dealt wįth in equity and thį change of deferreį tax is recognised in oCl.Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset wnen tnere is a legally enforceable right to set off currenttax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income-taxes levied by the same taxationauthority and the Company intends to settle its current Įax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly liquidinvestments with original maturities of three months or ress.
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2.14 lmpairment

lmpairment of property and equipment and intangibre assets

f! eac-h reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its property and equipment andintangible assets to determine whether there is any indicaiioi that those assets have suffered an impairmentloss' lf any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
9*le!l of the impairment loss (if any). where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of anindividual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable įmount of the cash-generating unit to which the assetbelongs' Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation cannot be identified, corporate assets are alsoallocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified. Recoverable amountis the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. ln assessing the value in use, the estimated futurecash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discįunt rate that reflects current marketassessments of the time value of money and the risksĮpecific to the asset for which the estimates of futurecash flows have not been adjusted.

lf the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generatin9 unĮt) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,the carrying amount of the asset (cash-genera1ing unit)l:s reįuced to its recoverable amount. An impairmentloss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless'the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, inwhich case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) isincreased to the revised estimate of įts recoverable amouni, uįt so that the increaseĮ carrying amount doesnot exceed the carrying amount that would have been deteimįned had no impairment tosj nJen ,""ogni."ofor the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediatelyas income, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of theimpairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

lmpairment of financial assets
lmpairment of financial assets is recognised based on expected credit loss (ECL) which could be suffered dueto counterparty default. Expected credit losses model is applied on finaniial aisets measured at fair valuethrough other comprehensive income (except equity instruments) and on financįal instruments measured atamortised cost. lt is not applicable on financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss as wellas on equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Terms and definitions:

Expected Credit Loss (ECL) - the probable decrease in future cash-flows due to default event orimpairment of receivables;
Probability of default (PD) - probability that over particular time liabilities to the Company wi1 not be fulfiled.
Loss Given Default (LGD) - share of financial asset expected to lose in the case of default event;
Exposure at Default (EAD) - the amount which is exposed to default risk and for which expected credit losses
are calculated;
Lifetime ECL - the expected credit losses from all possible default events over the expected life of the financialinstrument;
12-month EcL - the part of the credit loss for the period of validity, resulting from loss events likely to occur
within the next 12 months from the assessment date;
Recovery raįe - is the extent to which defaulted debt can be recovered.

ECL on debt instruments is calculated based on probability of counterparty default (pD) and expected lossgiven default (LGD). PDs are determined by using statisticį (default historį of issueis with the same rating)published by major credit rating agencies. Certainįrobabilitiei of default arė calculated and assigned to eachfinancial instrument according credit rating of issuer. LGDs evaluation is also based on historical recoveryrates published by credit agencies.
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The Company applies 12-month ECL on debt instruments. Except if credit risk of a financial asset at the
reporting date increased significantly compared to credit risk at date of initial recognition the Company applies
Life{ime ECL. Credit risk is determined based on external credit rating. Company considers that a financial
asset's credit risk has not increased significantly if the asset has low credit risk (credit rating is under
investment-grade class) at the reporting date.

Presentation in financial statements

For financial assets measured at amortised cost the loss allowance is deducted from the gross carrying amount
of the assets. For debt investments measured at FVOCI the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and does not reduce the carrying amount of the financial asset in the statement of
financial position. The impairment on receivables is recognised in profit or loss for the period.

2.15 Employee benefits

The Company calculates annual bonuses for personnel based on the Company's reporting year's financial
results and the achievement of personal goals. Short-term employee benefits, including salaries and social
security contributions, bonuses and vacation benefįts, are included in Administrative expenses on an accrual
basis. For some employees, a part of the annual bonus may be deferred and paid out in up to several years
subsequent to the calculation year. The accruals for personnel bonuses represent the amount accrued as at
the year end. The Company pays social security contributions to the State Social Security Fund (the Fund) on
behalf of its employees in accordance with local legal requirements. The social security contributions are
recognised as an expense on an accrual basis and are included within staff costs.

3. USE OF JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

Management makes judgments, estimates and assumptions that are applied in the process of preparation of
the financial statements and affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses.
Although these estimates are based on management's best knowledge of current events and actions, the
actual results ultimately may differ from those estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the accounting
estimates are recognised in the period, in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Outstanding claims reserve is one of the main Company's evaluations which estimate the ultimate liability
arising from claims made under insurance contracts. Outstanding claims reserve includes the reserve for
reported but not settled claims (RBNS), incurred but not reported claims (IBNR), claims handling provision and
recourse outstanding provision. Outstanding claims reserve is disclosed in Note 7.

The reserve for reported but not settled claims (RBNS) is calculated automatically when entering preliminary
case settlement amount into the insurance system set by claims specialists as at the accounting date. For
newly reported cases initial case estimates derived by actuaries from claims data are used, which are then
updated by claims specialists based on additional information received.

The reserve for incurred but not reported claims (IBNR) is calculated by lines of business using Bornhuetter-
Ferguson, Loss Ratio and Average Pay-out methods. Loss Ratio for Bornhuetter-Ferguson method is derived
using frequency, severity and average premiums, also taking seasonality effect into account. lt means that the
method is supported by Chain-Ladder and Average Pay-out or Loss Ratio methods.

IBNR for most reserving classes in Lithuania and Estonia is calculated using Bornhuetter-Ferguson method
due to sufficient claims history and stable development pattern. IBNR for other reserving classes is calculated
using simplified Bornhuetter-Ferguson method where development pattern is assumed. For remaining
reserving classes, due to insufficient claims data or unstable development pattern, Loss Ratio method is used.
Also, IBNR is formed for specific liabilities arising from particular situations such as pain and suffering claims
periodic payments, indexation of net retention and reopening claims.

Claims handling provision is calculated as a percentage from outstanding claims assuming that on average
half of reported, but not settled claims are not yet handled. Coefficients for claims handling reserve are selected
analysing historical ratios of claims handling expenses.

Reserves for recourse outstanding and recourse asset are calculated deriving historic recovery percentages
by accident quarters and applying them on outstanding claims amounts.
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4. NET WRITTEN PREMIUMS

Gross
amount

2021
Reįnsurers'

share Net amount

2020
Reinsurers'

share Net amount

Motor vehicle third
party liability insurance
Motor own damage
insurance
Fire and other damage
to property insurance
lncome protection
insurance
Medical expense
insurance
General liability
insurance
Credit and sureŲship
insurance
M iscellaneous fi nancial
loss
Marine, aviation and
transport insurance

81 702

80 569

69 488

15 741

12 540

5 947

2 458

2 385

1 33'l

(1 638)

(1 632)

(3 531)

(63)

(13)

(537)

(30e)

(1 310)

(68)

80 065

78 937

65 957

15 678

12 526

5 410

2 149

1 075

1 263

Gross
amount

83 268

74 018

61 562

14 125

8 437

5 988

2 538

2 217

1 094

(1 627)

(1 501)

(3 673)

(68)

(17)

(248)

(610)

(1 520)

(56)

81 641

72 517

57 889

14 061

8 420

5 740

1 928

697

1 038
272 161

Gross
premiums

earned

81 965

77 221

67 272

14 852

10 818

6 030

3 092

2 549

1 178

Reinsurers'
share

Net
premiums

earned

Gross
premiums

earned
Reinsurers'

share

Net
premiums

earned

86 372

73 627

57 272

13 382

7 333

5 593

268

1 272

1 060

(9 101) 263 060 253251 (9 320) 243 93'l

2021 2020
Premiums earned

Motor vehicle third party
liabiliŲ insurance
Motor own damage
insurance
Fire and other damage to
property insurance
lncome protection
insurance
Medical expense
insurance
General liability
insurance
Credit and sureŲship
insurance
Miscellaneous fi nancial
loss
Marine, aviation and
transport insurance
TOTAL

(1 633)

(1 638)

(3 510)

(63)

(1 3)

(474)

(513)

(1 207)

(68)

80 332

75 583

63762

14 789

10 805

5 556

2 579

1 342

I 110

88 010

75 142

60 983

13 450

7 350

5 865

896

2 409

1 117

(1 638)

(1 515)

(3 711)

(68)

(17)

(272)

(628)

(1 137)

(521

264 977 (9 119) 2ss 858 255222 (9 043) 246179
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5. UNEARNED PREMIUM RESERVE

a) Movement in unearned premium reserve

Balance at 31 December 2019
Written premiums
Earned premiums
Total change for the year
Balance at 31 December 2020

Written premiums
Earned premiums
Total change for the year
Balance at 31 December 2021

Motor own damage insurance
Fire and other damage to property insurance
Medical expense insurance
lncome protection insurance
Marine, aviation and transport insurance
General liability insurance
Credit and sureŲship insurance
Motor vehicle third party liabiliŲ insurance
Miscellaneous financial loss

I ncome protection insurance
Fire and other damage to property insurance
General liability insurance
Marine, aviation and transport insurance
Credit and sureŲship insurance
Motor own damage insurance
Motor vehicle third parŲ liabiliŲ insurance

Grossamount Reinsurers'share

'|.29 274
253 251
255 222

(81e)
(e 320)
(9 043)

Net amount

128 455
243 930
246 178

(1971\ (277) (2248\
(1 0e6)

272 161
264 976

7 185 18
(1 078)

b) Ghanges in unearned premium reserye and distribution by type of insurance for the year 2021

127 303 126 207

(e 101 )
(9 1 19)

263 060
255 857

7 203
134 488 133 410

3 348
2 216
1 722

889
1s3
(83)

(164)
(263)
(633)

6
(21)

(63)
(1 03)

(5)
204

3 354
2 195
1 722

889
153

(1 46)
(267)
(268)
(42e)

7 185 18

c) Changes in unearned premium reserve and distribution by type of insurance for the year 2020

Grossamount Reinsurers'share

Miscellaneous financial loss 1642 18
Medical expense insurance 1087

(7 2031

Net amount

679
579
123
(23)

(192\
(1 124)
(4 742\

38
24

(383)
15
11

1 660
1 087

679
617
147
(23)

(575)
(1 10e)
(4 7311

(1 e71) (2771 (22481
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d) Gross unearned premium resērve as at end of year

Motor own damage insurance
Motor vehicle third parŲ liabiliŲ insurance
Fire and other damage to property insurance
lncome protection insurance
Medical expense insurance
General liabiliŲ įnsurance
Credit and sureŲship insurance
Miscellaneous financial loss
Marine, aviation and transport insurance

CLAIMS PAID

31.12.2021

42261
36 781
34 400
8 169
6 341
3 231
1 566
1 273

466

31.',t2.2020

38 9'13
37 044
32 184
7 280
4 599
3 314
I 730
I 926

313
134 488 127 303

Motor own damage
Motor vehicle third party
liabiliŲ insurance
Fire and other damage to
properŲ insurance
Medical expense insurance
lncome protection insurance
General liabiliŲ insurance
Miscellaneous fi nancial loss
Marine, aviation and
transport insurance
Credit and sureŲship
insurance
Other

Gross
amount

(49 720)

(46 138)

(31 68e)
(e 371)
(5 028)
(2 608)
(1 044)

(445)

(1 50)

2021
Reinsurers'

share

704

352

230

46

20

237

223

Net
amount

(4e 015)

(45 787)

(31 45e)
(e 371)
(4 e82)
(2 608)
(1 023)

(208)

72

Gross
amount

(46 e2e)

(46 457)

(125)

(46)

2020
Reinsurers'

share

(28
(6
(4
(2

(

689)
272)
223)
402)
423)

Net
amount

761 (46 168)

112 (46 345)

982 (27 707)
(6 272)
(4223)
(2 3e0)

(213)
12

210

22

16

(1 03)

(30)

(146 1e3) 1 812 (144381) (135 566) 2 115 _1199i!11
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7. OUTSTANDING CLAIM RESERVES
a) Movement in outstanding claims reserve:

At beginning of year
Notified claims
lncurred, but not reported
Total at beginning of year
Cash paid for claims notified
in prior years
Changes in liabilities arising
from current and prior year
claims
Total change in year
Total at end of year
Notified claims
lncurred, but not reported

Total at end ofyear

123 484 (13 811) 109 673

Gross
amount

84 132
39 352

2021
Reinsurers'

share

(13 050)
(7611

Net
amount

Gross
amount

2020
Reinsurers'

share
Net

amount

65 349
33 267

71 082
38 591

75 985
33 971

(10 636)
(704\

(23 821)

109 9s6 (11 340) 98 616

e48 (22873) (27 es7) 290 (27 667)

34 145
10 324

(2 080)
(1 132j

32 065
I 192

41 485
13 528

(2761) 38724
(2 471 ) 11 057

133 807
94 152
39 6s5

(14 943)
(13 8ee)

1 18 864
80 253
38611

123 484
84 132
39 352

(13 811)
(13 050)

(761\

109 673
71 082
38 5911 044\

133 807 (14 943) 118 864 123 484 (13 811) 109 673

b) Change in outstanding claims reserye and distribution by type of insurance for the year 2021:

Motor vehicle third party liabiliŲ insurance
Motor own damage insurance
General liability insurance
Marine, aviation and transport insurance
lncome protection insurance
Medical expense insurance
Credit and sureŲship insurance
Miscellaneous fi nancial loss
Fire and other damage to property insurance

Motor vehicle third paĄ liabiliŲ insurance
Fire and other damage to property insurance
Miscellaneous fi nancial loss
General liability insurance
Medical expense insurance
Credit and sureŲship insurance
Marine, aviation and transport insurance
lncome protection insurance
Motor own damage insurance

Gross
amounl

Reinsurers'
share

(662)
(36)

(e65)
22

Net
amounį

6 751
3 793
1 110

297
103
(31)
(88)

(670)
(s411

(145)
74

580

6 089
3 756

146
319
103
(31)

(233)
(5e6)

10 324 (1 1321

c) Change in outstandįng claims reserye and distribution by type of insurance for the year 2020

Gross amount
Reinsurers'

share

9',192

Net
amount

6 648
4 456
't 861

941
474
278
180
104

(1 4s4\

95
(2 33e)

(1 10)
50

(2e1)
4

6 743
2 157
1 751

991
474
(1 3)
184
104

(1 333)121

43

13 528 (2 4701 11 058
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d) Gross outstanding claims resērve as at end of year;

Motor vehicle third party liabiliŲ insurance
Fire and other damage to property insurance
Motor own damage insurance
General liability insurance
Credit and sureŲship insurance
Medical expense insurance
M iscellaneous fi nancial loss
lncome protection insurance
Marine, aviation and transport insurance

8, AGQUISITION COSTS

Commissions to brokers and other intermediaries
Personnel expenses
Commissions and other agent related expense
Office expenses
Marketing and representation expenses
Premises expenses
Depreciation and amortisation
Other acquisition costs
Compulsory state social security contributions related to agents
Reinsurance commission
Change of deferred acquisition costs

Deferred client acquisition costs
As at 31 December2019
Deferred client acquisition costs additions to new contracts
Amortisation of deferred acquisition costs
As at 31 December2020
Deferred client acquisition costs additions to new contracts
Amortisation of deferred acquisition costs
As at 3't December 202i

9. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE

Wages and salaries:
- salaries to staff
- state compulsory social insurance contributions
lnformation technology and communication expense
Office expenses
Premises utiliŲ, maintenance, repair expense and rent
Advertisement and public relations
Professional services
Depreciation and amortisation
Other administrative expense
Transport

Deferred acquisition cost (DAC) change during 2021
thousand) and presented in Statement of comprehe
above.

is EUR '1 681 thousand (during 2020: EUR (1 566)
nsive income Acquisition costs position as disclosed

31.12.2021 31j22020

86 427
19 948
10 960
8 448
2234
1 951
1 465
1 352
1 022

79 675
20 889
7 169
7 337
2 323
1 983
2 135
1 248

725
133 807 123 484

2021 2020

(27 813)
(15 722)
(7 s33)
(2 633)
(1 612)
(1 503)

(701)
(551)
(351)

786
1 682

(24 218)
(14 712)
(7 356)
(2 671)
(1 622)
(1 681)

(883)
(345)
(261)

773
(1 s67)

(55 e53) (54 s43)

22 548
40 070

(41 636)
20 981

38 428
(36 747)
22663

2021 2020

(10 015)
(e42)

(1 633)
(1 2e8)

(710)
(688)
(406)
(273)
(206)

(76],

(10 121)
(e03)

(1 574)
(1 257)

(7e3)
(836)
(645)
(555)
(341)
n20\
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(All amounts in thousands of euro unless otherwise stated)

,IO. OTHER EXPENSE RELATED TO INSURANCE ACTIVITIES

Motor Bureau fee
Fees to regulatory institutions and other expenses

11. INVESTMENTACTIVITYRESULT

Interest income:
Government debt securities
Corporate debt securities

Other profit (loss) from investment activity:
Equity instruments measured at FVOCI:

Dividend income
Realisation result

Debt instruments measured at FVOCI realised gains/(losses):
Government debt securities
Corporate debt securities

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Collective investment undertakings unrealised gains/(losses)

lnvestment valuation and management expenses:
Revaluation of investment property
lnvestment management expenses

2021 2020

(1 585)
(581)

807
(584

(2 166) (2 3el)

2021

2 207
270

2020

I 924
215

2 477

102

1 447

2 139

,t:

s2
58

805

(516)

4

(637)
915 562

3 392 2701

There were no derecognised equity instruments measured at FVOCI dividend income during the 2021financial
year (EUR 12 thousand in 2020), fair value at the date of derecognition in 2020 was EUR 140 thousand.

12. EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS ON F|NANCIAL ASSETS AND NET tMpAtRMENT PROFIT (LOSS)

ECL amounts and amounts of assets exposed to ECL at reporting date are presented in the table below:

Debt instruments measured
at FVOCI (Note 19)

Other receivables (Note 24)

Exposure
31.12.2021

291 319
2 949

ECL
31.12.2021

Change in
ECL

31.12.202',1
Exposure

31j2.2020
ECL

31]122020

Change in
ECL

31.12.2020

(18)(1 13)

(55)
(16) 266 970

2 555

(e7)

(55)
294268 (168) (16) 269 s2s (1s2)

Net impairment profit (loss) in 2021 is EUR (203) thousand (76 EUR thousand in 2020).

13. FINANCIAL INCOME AND EXPENSE

2021
Financial income
Gain from foreign currency fluctuations

(18)

4

2020

17

(755)
(68)

(823)

Financial expense
Bank commission
lnterest from operating lease (see Note 38)
Total financial expense

45

(858)
(52)

(el0)
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amounts in thousands of euro unless otherwise

14. OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES

Other income
lncome from properties
Other income
Total other income
Other expenses

15. CORPORATE INCOME TAX

Corporate income tax for the reporting year
Change in deferred income tax recognized through profit or loss
Total income tax expense

Theoretically calculated tax at a tax rate of j5%
Theoretical effect of non-deductibre expenses and non-taxabre income
Total tax

Effective corporate income tax rate in 2021 is 12.60/o (2020: 11.go/o)

Deferred tax assets (riabilities) at the end of the reporting period

Deferred income tax asset (liabiliŲ) as at the beginning of the reporting year
Deferred income tax changes recognised through profit or loss
Deferred income tax changes recognised through other comprehensive income
Deferred income tax asset (riabirity) as at the end of the reporting year

Deferred income tax effect of:
temporary difference for accrued expenses
temporary difference for impairment for overdue debtors
temporary difference for property revaluation and depreciation
other temporary differences
temporary difference for recoverable regress
temporary difference for financial assets at fair varue through other
comprehensive income revaluation
temporary difference for financial asset at fair varue through profit or
loss revaluation
Deferred income tax asset (riability) as at the end of the reporting
year

2021

112
525
637
(76)

11',!
374
485

(833)

2020

2020202',!

(3 876)
9

(3 36e)
(1 0e)

(3 867) (3 478)

corporate income tax is different from the theoretically calculated amount of tax to be paid if the company,slosses were taxed at the statutory rate.

2021 2020

Profit / (loss) before tax 30 770 29 210

4 616
(74e)

4 382
(eo4)

3 867 3 478

2021 2020

(531)

(1 0e)
(1 56)

(1 03) (7e6)

31.12.2021 31j22020

(7e6)

10

683

Deferred income tax is calculated from the following te-mporary differences between the carrying amounts ofassets and liabilities and their values for the purposē of the calįulations of corporate income tax:

1 783
107
16

(736)
(1 e6)

't 568
99
16

(755)
(17e)

(s30) (1213)

(s47) (332)

(1 03) (7e6)

The Company does not have significant tax positions that are subject to uncertainties and therefore does notform an amount of uncertainty in the calculation of income tax in accordance with IFRIC lnterpretation 23Uncertainties relating to the measurement of income taxes.
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Movement in deferred income tax balances

Net balance
3't December

2020

Recognised

ln P/L ln OCI

31 December2021

Net balance
31 December 2021 Deferred tax assēt Deferred tax liability

Accrued expenses
Trade and other
receivables
ProperŲ
Other amounts
causing temporary
differences
Recoverable
regress
Financial assets at
fair value through
other
comprehensive
income (former
available-for-sale)
Financial asset at
fair value through
profit or loss

1 568 215

99
16

(755)

(1 7e)

19

(17)

107
16

107
16

1 783

(736)

(1e6)

1 783

(736)

(1e6)

(1 21 3) 683 (530) (530)

(332) (215) (547) (547)

Deferred tax
asseU (liability)
before set-off
Set-off of tax
Net deferred tax
asseu (liability)

Accrued expenses
Trade and other
receivables
ProperŲ
Other amounts
causing temporary
differences
Recoverable
regress
Financial assets at
fair value through
other
comprehensive
income (former
available-for-sale)
Financial asset at
fair value through
profit or loss

Net balance
31 December

2019

Recognised

1 906
(1 e06)

(103)

31 December2020

Net balance
31 December 2020 Deferred tax asset Deferred tax liability

1 568 1 568

(2 00e)
I 906

ln P/L ln OCI
't 509 59

131
5

(640)

(265)

(1 057)

(32)
11

(1 15)

86

99
16

oo
16

(755)

(1 7e)

(755)

(1 7e)

(1 56) (1213) (1213)

(214) (1 18) (332) (332)

Deferred tax
asseU (liability)
before set-off
Set-off of tax
Net deferred tax
asseU (liability)

1 683
(1 683)

(2 47el
1 683
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Asat31 December2019
Acquisition cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book value

ln 2020
Additions
Amortisation charge
Glosing net book value

As at 31 December 2020
Acquisition cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book value

ln 2021
Additions
Amortisation charge
Glosing net book value

As at 31 December 2021
Acquisition cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book value

Software

23 174
(19 843)

Total

23 174
(19 843)

3 331 3 331

1 080
(821)

1 080
(821\

3 590 3 590

24 254
(20 664)

24 254
(20 664)

3 590 3 590

2 348
(e4e)

2348
(e4e)

4 989 4 989

26 602
(21 613)

26 602
(21613)

4 989 4 989
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17. PROPERW AND EQUIPMENT

Land and
buildings

Lands and
premises
lease by
|FRS 16r

Other
(strucįures)

Construction
in progress Leasehold

and improve-
prepayments ments

Office and
other

As at 31 December2019
Acquisition cost 14 856 2 sto 1 146
Accumulated depreciation (7 269) (5S3) (785)

7 587 1 987 361

Motor
vehicles equipment Total

670 788 4 574 2 514 27 118
(600) I 740

670 188 2834
(221s) (131s6)

295 13922Net book value
ln 2020

Additions

Additions by IFRS 16
Disposals
IFRS 16 decreases
(cancellations)
Reclassification
Discarded
Depreciation charge
Depreciation by IFRS 16
Depreciation on disposed
assets
Depreciation on discarded
assets
Closing net book value

'1 180

(7)

(280)
(650)

7 346 2510

(571) (1)

19

(47) (4e3)
(3e)

(1 5e)

150 2929

1 180
(582)

(7)

19
(1 08)

(1 040)
(650)

39 2 391 34 315

(10)

(6e)
(61)

't0

69
300

345 35s

3 061 175 2449
39

28s
108

16 126

As at 31 December 2020
Acquisition cost 14 89S
Accumulated depreciation (l 549)
Net bookvalue 7 346

3 743
1 233
2 510

1 067
(767)

300

30 549
(14 4231

16 126

3 061 822 4337 2624
(647) (1 888) (2 33e)

175 2 449 2853 061
ln202'l
Additions
Additions by IFRS 16
Disposals
IFRS '16 decreases
(cancellations)
Reclassification
Discarded
Depreciation charge
Depreciation by IFRS '16

Depreciation on disposed
assets
Depreciation on discarded
assets
Closing net book value

41

(1)

ę81;

1

7 106

473

(7s4)

(1 30)

2 099

(20)
(61)

74 3 584 111 147 116

(1 438) (5)

5

5
248

4 073
473

(1 4441

(754',)

837

25
18 225

(4e) (412)

831

(5)
(1 53)

(251
(e56)
(1 30)

20
313

As at 31 December2021
Acquisition cost 14 935
Accumulated depreciation (7 829)
Net book value 7 106

3 462
1 363
2 099

I 121

(808)
313

6 645 237 'l 577

6 645 933 3 046 2730 32872
(6e6) (1 46e) (2482) (14648)

IFRS 'tO is disclosed in Note 38.
I Land and oremi ses lease bv
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18 INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Net book value at 31 December 201g
Change in fair value in 2020
Net book value at 31 December 2020
Change in fair value in 2021
Net book value at 31 December 2021

f 9. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

Financial investments at fair
value through other
comprehensive income:
Lithuania government debt
securities
Poland government debt securities
Romania government debt
securities
Croatia government debt securities
Bulgaria government debt securities
Hungary government debt securities
Latvia government debt securities
Spain government debt securities
lreland government debt securities
Italy government debt securities
Mexico government debt securities
Serbia government debt securities
Peru government debt securities
Morocco government debt securities
Corporate debt securities
Shares (irreversible option)
Total Financial investments at fair
value through other
comprehensive income:

Financial investments at fair
value through profit or loss;
Collective investment undertakings
Total fi nancial investments:

29s647 293 890

22022 25781

1 500

1 500

1 500

lnvestment property comprises commercial property, building located in Vilnius, that the Company rents out to
a third party. The fairvalueof investment property is revieūed at each reporting date, and anyĮhanges are
reflected in profit or loss. No disposal or reclassification of investmenĮ propĮrty d'uring zozl an|a zozo
respectfully were recognised. Rental income during 2021 year is EUR 112 thousand (2020: EUR 111
thousand) recognised in the statement of Comprehensive Income under Other income as disclosed in Note
14. No operating expenses for lnvestment property were recognised during 2021 and 2020 respectfully.

Measurement of investment property is sensitive to macroeconomic environment (e.g. economic arowth,inflation rate, interest rate), supply and demand on individual local property markets,'thį value r"y čn"ng"
depending on the current market situation. The Company assesses the fair vįlue of investment property nasēc
on the opinion of independent property valuation agency that holds a recognised and relevant įualiiication.Fair value measurement for lnvestment property of EUR 1 5OO thousand in žozl 1zozo: EUR 1 SOb thousand)
has been categorised as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. Valuation technique įsed measuring fair value oi
investment property, as well as the significant unobservable inputs used as at 31 Decembēr 2021 was
discounted cash flows technique. Discount rate used was 8.78% and rental income per sq. m. is in the range
between EUR 8 to 16. Anticipated future rental price growth is from Oo/o Įo 2o/o.

31j22021 31.12.2020

Acquisition
cost

130 179
36 460

Faįr value

130 737
34 727

Acquisition
cost

'131 61 1

40 246

Fair value

I 33 936
39 508

19 451
21 926
12 138
12 591
5 286
2 414
1 744

17 707
1 469
1 496
1 496
1 484

28 386
1 422

18 969
21 101
11 987
12 495
5 420
2 425
1 585

17 176
1 483
1 469
1 525
1 487

28 734
2 571

19 451
21 926
12 138
14 109
5 286
2 414
1 744

19 538
21 847
12 353
14 254
5 492
2 447
1 654

15 337
1 522

15 941
2 525

265784 269 495

22022 24335
317 669 319 671

50

287 806 293 830



Lietuvos draudimas AB
company's code 1'l0051834, J. Basanavičiaus st. 12, Vilnius

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2021
(All amounts in thousands of euro unless otherwise stated)

Financial investments at FVOCI in total of EUR 293 890 thousand at fair value are quoted. ln accordance withlFRs '13 definitions, based on inputs used in the valuation techniques, fair valįes of quoted assets arecategorised into the fair.value hierarchy Level 1: unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identįcalassets' As at 31 December 2021,the Company did noi have unquoted financial investments measured atFVOC|.

Financial investments at FVTPL in total of EUR 2 49'l thousand at fair value are quoted (Level 1 - listed equityfinancial instruments in the fair value hierarchy). Assets amounting to EUR 2g 2go thousand are categorisedas Level 2 as unlisted equity financial instruments in the fair value-hierarchy.

No movements between levels of the fair value hierarchy occurred throughout the financial year.
Changes in ECL of financial instruments are presented below:

12-month
ECL

Life-tįme ECL
not credit-

impaired

Lįfe-time
ECL credit-

impaired Total
Debt instruments measured at FVOGI

As at 31 December 2020
ECL measurements
New assets acquired
Financial assets derecognised
As at 31 December2021

Current
Past due 0-30 days
Past due 31-60 days
Past due more than 60 days

Gross Life-time ECL
31.12.2021 31j22021

(e7)

4
(24)

4

(e7)

4
(24)

4
(113) (113)

Equity instruments measured at FVocl and financial assets measured at FVTpL are not subject to the ECLmodel.

20. oTHER COMPREHENSTVE TNCOME (OCt)

Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss:
Revaluation of debt securities measured aį fair value through oCl
Realisation result reclassified to profit or loss

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Revaluation of equity instruments measured at fair varue through ocr

Amounts are presented net of related tax effect.

2021 2020

21. RECEIVABLES FROM DIRECT INSURANCE OPERATIONS
31.12.202't 31j22020

Gross receivables from direct insurance operations
lmpairment for receivables from direct insurance operations

54 750 sl 979

The ageing of receivables from direct insurance operations at the reporting date was as follows:

(4 002)
4

229

307
150

393
769) 850

55 314
(564)

s2 345
(366)

Gross
31.12.2020

lmpairment
31.12.2020

54 368
648

78

220

(31 1)

(54)

(7)
(1921

51 439
663

71

172

(1 63)
(43)
(6)

(1541
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The movement įn the allowance for impairment in respect of receivables from direct insurance operations
during the year was as follows:

Asat31 December2019
Additional allowances
Recovered debts
Written-off debts

As at 31 December2020

ECL assessment
Recovered debts
Written-off debts

As at 3't December 2021

22. REINSURANCE RECEIVABLES

G ross receivables from rei nsurance operations
lmpairment for receivables from reinsurance operations

23. OTHERACCRUED INCOMEAND DEFERRED EXPENSES

Deferred Motor Bureau fee
Deferred information system maintenance fees
Other deferred expenses

24. OTHER RECEIVABLES

Receivables for subrogation transactions
Receivables from the Motor Bureau
Other receivables
Receivables from prepayments
lmpairment of other receivables
Total other receivables

561

1 186

(1 1e1)
(1 e0)

366

650
(123)
(32e)

564

3',t.12.2021 31.12.2020

1 296
(125)

3 662
(278)

1 171 3 384

31.12.2021 31.12.2020

684
970
622

732
574
640

2276 1 946

31.12.2021 31.12.2020

1 608
807
271
263
(55)

1 326
673
275
281
(55)

2894 2 500

Other receivables are due within 12 months from the Statement of Financial Position date and carry no interest.

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of other receivables during the year was as follows:

As at 31 December 2019 55
ECL measurements
Debts recovered

Debts written-off

As at 31 December 2020 55

ECL measurements
Debts recovered
Debts written-off

As at 31 December202l
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25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Compulsory state social security contributions

3',1.12.2021

I 223

31.12.2020

15 982Cash in banks
I 223 15 982

ln2021 and2020, the Company did not have any term deposits in credit institutions.

26. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

a) lssued and fully paid share capital

The total authorised number of ordinary shares is 805 620 (as at 31 December 2020 the number of ordinary
shares was the same). The nominal value of one share as at 31 December 2021 is EUR 14.48 (as at 31
December 2020, the nominal value of one share was the same). All issued shares are fully paid. The share
capital of the Company as at 31 December 2021, is EUR 11 665 thousand (as at 31 December 2020 - EUR
1 1 665 thousand).

The Company's shares are not listed.

b) The shareholder

As at 31 December 2021 and as at 31 December 2020, the shareholder of the Company with 100% shares
was PoWSZECHNY ZA}<Į-AD UBĖzPlEcZEN s.A., a stock company.

c) Share premium

According to the share issue rules, a share premium was set in addition to the nominal value of the shares.

d) Reserve capital and other reserves

Reserves include legal reserve and revaluation reserve for financial instruments measured at fair value through
OCl. The Company's legal reserve as at 31 December 2021 was the same as at 31 December 2O2O and
amounted to EUR 2 333 thousand. Legal reserve was formed in full capacity and cannot be distributed.

The revaluation reserve decreased throughout the year from EUR 6 876 thousand at 31 December 2020 to
EUR 3 002 thousand at 3'1 December 2021.

e) Profit distribution as dividends

ln accordance with the Company's Dividend Policy, the amount of dividends determined as available for
distribution for the year ended 31 December 2021 is EUR 13.5 million. The final amount of dividends is subject
to recommendation of the Management Board, proposal of the Supervisory Board and the decision of the
General Shareholders' Meeting.

f) Dividends per share

Dividends paid during 2021 for 2020 year results value per share is 18.62 EUR. Planned value of dividends
paid per share for 2021 year results is EUR 16.76.

27 TAXES

31.12.2021

2s4

31.',t2.2020

236

53
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28. ACCRUED EXPENSESAND DEFERRED INCOME

Accrued expenses
Commissions
Operating expenses
lntermediary commissions
Additional sales bonuses
Audit expenses and related services
Total accrued expenses

Other accrued expenses and deferred income
Not settled insurance prepayments
Other deferred income
Total accrued expenses and deferred income

31.12.2021

7 438
5 783
1 013

706
39

31.12.2020

7 225
5 044
1 177

548
57

14979 14 051

2 059
216

1 951
200

2 275 215',1
17 254 16 202

Accruals for
commissions

Accruals for
operating
lįabilities

Other accrued
expenses and

deferred income Total
7 225

40 651

(40 438)

5 044
7 479

(6 740)

3 933
25 818

(25 718)

16 202
73 948

(72 8e6)

As at 31 December2020
Additions
Used and reversed

As at 31 December2021

Long-term part
Short-term part

7 438 5 783 4 033 17 254

7 438

Accruals for
commissions

5 783

Accruals for
operating
liabilities

4 033

Other accrued
expenses and

deferred income

17 254

Total
As at 31 December 2019
Additions
Used and reversed

As at 31 December 2020

Long-term part
Short-term part

7 664
42 892

(43 331)

4 500

6 485
(5 e41)

3 544
20 973

(20 584)

15 708

70 350
(6e 856)

7 225 5 044 3 933 16 202

7 225

29. OTHER LIABILITIES

Payable salaries, bonuses and other related payments
Finance lease liability by IFRS 16 (see Note 38)
Due to the Motor lnsurers' Bureau
Other payables related to insurance activities
Other liabilities

5 044 3 933 16 202

31.122021 31.'t2.2020

10 553
2 177

151
320

4 583

10 258
2 569

213
294

3 106
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30. RESULT OF CEDED REINSURANCE

Reinsurers' share in written premiums (see Note 4)
Reinsurers' share in changes in unearned premiums (see Note 5)
Reinsurance commission income (see Note 8)
Reinsurers' share in claims (see Note 6)
Reinsurers' share in changes in outstanding claims reserve (see Note 7)
Net result of ceded reinsurance activities:

202',1 2020

(e 101)
(18)
786

1 812
1 132

(e 320)
277
773

2 115
2 470

(5 38e) (3 685)

31. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

Related parties represent both legal entities and private individuals related to the Company in accordance with
the following rules:

a) A person or a close member of that person's family is related to the Company if that person:i) Has control or joint control over the Company;
ii) Has signiflcant influence over the Company; or
iii) ls a member of the key management personnel of the Company or of a parent of the Company.

b) An entity is related to the company if any of the following conditions applies:

The entity and the Company are members of the same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).
One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a member).
Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Company or
an entity related to the Company. lf the Company is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
also related to the Company.

vi) The entity is controlled, or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).
vii) A person identified in (a) (i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key

management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
viii) The entity, 9r aly member of a group of which it is a part, įrovides key management personnel

services to the Company or to the parent of the Company.
During the reporting year, the following transactions were carrįed out with related parties:

a) Transactions with related parties

Reinsurance and frontinq insurance

PoWszEcH NY ZAKLAD UBĖzPlĖczĖt{ s.a. 1ezu ; (shareholder) :

Reinsurance premiums ceded
Change of reinsurance unearned premium reserve
Reinsurance claims
Change of reinsurance outstanding claims reserve

2021 2020

i)

ii)

iii)
iv)
v)

(6 765)
(117)

990
940

(7 327)
261

1 467
2 595

(4 e52)

2021

229

(3 004)

2020
Balta AAS (Group company):

Master agreement's premiums
Reinsurance premiums ceded
Change of reinsurance unearned premium reserve
Reinsurance claims
Change of reinsurance outstanding claims reserve

217
(2)

(14)
20

(15)

55
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Other transactions

Powsz Ec H NY ZAKLAD UBĖzPlĖczĖt(t s'a. 1 ezu 1 (s ha re h ol d e r) :

Dividends paid
lndemniŲ cost and handling fee

Reinsurers' share in unearned premium reserves with PZU
Reinsurers' share in outstanding claims reserves with PZU
Reinsurers' share in unearned premium reserves with Balta AAS
Reinsurers' share in outstanding claims reserves with Balta AAS
Reinsurance receivables from PZU
Reinsurance receivables from Balta MS
Receivables from PZU
Receivables from Balta MS
Receivables from other related parties
Reinsurance payables to PZU
Reinsurance payables to Balta AAS
Payables to other related parties

2021 2020

(15 000)
213 293

(147871

2021 2020

293

other Group companies (Balta AAS' LlNK4, PZU Lietuva Gyvybės Draudimas
JSC, PZU TFt, PZU CENTRUM OpERAC|JIS.A.):

lndemniŲ cost and handling fee
Compensation of expenses
Other purchases

Balances with related parties

There are the following outstanding balances with related parties as at the reporting date

(142)
18

(207)
92

(1241 (115)

31.12.2021 31.'.t2.2020

721
12 471

838
11 531

248
59

136
10
39

(73e)

43
77
63
35

(1 382)

2 417

(4e)

12 896 '13 622

b) Management remuneration

ln 2021, the Company paid remuneration, including compulsory state social security contributions, to the
Management Board in the amount of EUR 2OT2thousand (2020: EUR 1 922 thousand) and to the Supervisory
Board in the amount of EUR O thousand (2020: EUR 0 thousand).

32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

a) Generalclaims

ln the normal course of business, the Company constantly receives requests for claim payments. Such claims
have been reviewed by the Company's management who is of the opinion that no material unrecognised
losses will be incurred.

b) Litigation

The Company, like other insurers, is subject to litigation in the normal course of its business. As at 31
December 2021 įhere Were EUR 3 673 thousand (3'1 December 202o: EUR 3 732 thousand) where the
Company is defendant in legal disputes. The management is of the opinion that no material unrecognised
losses will be incurred.

c) Capitalcommitments

The Company does not have significant capital commitments as at 31 December 2021
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33. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Risk Management Strategy defines a consistent framework of the Risk Management System (including
security management as part of operational risk management) and the lnternal Control Sįstem (including
Compliance function) as the element supporting Risk Management System in the Company.

The Company implements the Strategy, policies and methodologies with specific rules for risk identification,
measurement and assessment, monitoring and control, reporting as well as taking management actions in
response to this risk.

Risk Management Strategy is the main document describing the risk management framework in the Company.
Risk Management Strategy is supported by the risk management policies and various additional documenįs
(procedures, methodologies, etc.). Risk Appetite document as an integral part of Risk Management Strategy
determines the maximum level of admissible risk by setting limits and thresholds for risks categories.

The risk management process consists of the following steps:

o ldentification;
. Measurement and assessment;
o Monitoring and control;
o Reporting;
. Management actions.

The Risk Appetite framework is established in order to determine the maximum level of admissible risk when
setting limits and thresholds on risks categories and as a level which, if exceeded, determines management
actions necessary to reduce further growth of the risk.

34. INSURANCE RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's activity is a conclusion of contracts between the insured and the lnsurer by which the lnsured
(policyholder) transfer the risk to the lnsurer (the Company). An insurance contract is one that contains an
agreement by the lnsurer to provide, in exchange for insurance premiums, benefits to a beneficiary of the
contract upon occurrence of specified uncertain future events affecting the life or property of the insured party
(the lnsured). This section summarises these risks coming from that process and the way the Company
manages them.

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty
of the amount of the resulting claim. By calculating the amount and type of risk to insure, the distribution of
possible losses should be evaluated and understood. The quantity of losses within a specific period is the
frequency of loss. ln addition to loss frequency, the insurance company should be also concerned with the
severity of losses. Loss severity is typically the amount that an insurer pays out for a benefit or a claim. These
principal risks are due to the claims paid varying in size, number, or timing of benefįt payments and actual
calculation premiums amount covering possible indemnities paid. For a portfolio of insurance contracts where
the theory of probability is applied to pricing and reserving, the principal risk that the Company faces under its
insurance contracts is that the actual claims payments will exceed the carrying amount of the insurance
liabilities.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar insurance contracts, the smaller the relative variability
about the expected outcome will be. ln addition, a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected by i
change in any subset of the portfolio. The Company has developed its insurance underuvriting strategy to
diversify the type of insurance risks accepted and within each of these categories to achieve a sufficientty t-Jrge
population of risks to reduce the variability of the expected outcome.

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by severalfactors. The most significant are the increasing
level of indemnities paid for the damage suffered, and the increase in the numberįf daim cases. Estimateč
inflation is also a significant factor due to increased increment rate of inflation.

The Company manages these risks through its underwriting strategy, adequate reinsurance arrangements
and proactive claims handling. lt is achieved by managing different type of insurance contracts agįregated
into insurance portfolios grouped by similar lines of business or similar type of insurance contracts.

The underuvriting strategy attempts to ensure that the underwritten risks are well diversįfied in terms of type
and amount of risk, industry and geography.
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Tvpes of sionificant insurance contracts

Motor third party liability insurance

It is a compulsory insurance type, the policy conditions and indemnification rules of which are prescribed by
the Motor Third Party Liability lnsurance Act and other related legislation.

Most of motor third party liability insurance indemnities are made up of indemnities for property damage and
lump sum personal injuries, mostly medical treatment costs and temporary incapacity for work benefits.
However, long-term indemnįties may also be possible, such as pensions and permanent incapacity for work
benefits which may be paid out over decades.

Accident insurance

The accident insurance is a money compensation for the facts of bodily injury where one type of contracts
indemnifies death, permanent incapacity for work or trauma arising from an accident. lt includes some
insurance cover of costs for medical treatment as well as medical expenses, caused by accident. ln addition,
it is possible to get daily allowances for the time spent in a hospital or temporary disability. Typical losses are
generally small and they are indemnified as lump sums. Death events rarely occur on the basis of accident
insurance contracts.

Travel insurance

The travel insurance indemnifies for the medical treatment costs incurred during a trip abroad if such costs are
caused by an illness or an accident started during the trip, repatriation, if needed. As an additįonalcover, the
cover loss of a baggage, insurance against trip cancellations, travel interruptions and delays as well as General
Third-Party Liability (GTPL) or personal accident coverage could be included. The indemnity limit for the
medical treatment and repatriation costs of passenger is usually limited to EUR 100 thousand. A larger risk is
related to potential natural disasters in holiday areas or transport crashes, where the number of the injured is
large.

Typical losses are generally small. The amount of an indemnity depends on the location of the loss occurrence
and the number of claims depends on the season.

Motor own damage insurance

The insurance indemnifies for losses which arise from damage to the vehicle, its destruction, theft or robbery.
Several additional insurance covers may also be purchased (like possibility to repair the vehicle with new
spare-parts for vehicles up to certain year age, possibility to choose auto repair workshop, cover for additional
equipment, cover for passengers). lnsurance premiums are determined individually for each customer based
on both customer as well as vehicle-based risk criteria. Product package includes road assistance and a
replacement car.

Property insurance, busrness interruption insurance and building risks insurance

Property insurance covers losses arisen because of fire, weather, leakage of liquid or steam, explosion,
malicious acts by third parties (robbery, burglary), collision. Client has an option to insure by All Risks cover
for extra premium. There is a possibility for individuals (private persons) to insure their contents (property) and
civil third-party liability in addition to private property insurance.

Business interruption insurance covers lost business profits and fixed costs incurred, which arise as a result
of any risk covered by property insurance of the lnsured.

The largest losses arise from fire risks, which in turn give rise to indemnification for business interruptions. The
loss is particularly large if the property (buildings and structures with movables in them) insured to a full extent
is destroyed and this leads to a business interruption indemnity until the production object is again put in
operation.

The most frequent events for private property are from all Risks cover, water leakage, theft, fire and weather
losses (storm, snowing and flood). The largest losses usually are because of fire.

Livestock insurance also includes risks related to the injuries resulting in death of animals. Most risky part of
the cover is against very dangerous epizootic diseases.

58



Lietuvos draudimas AB
Company's code 110051834, J. Basanavičiaus st. 12, Vilnius

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2021
(All amounts in thousands of euro unless otherwise stated)

Largest losses resulting from property type damages are managed by concluding appropriate reinsurance
contracts depending on realistic risk scenarios based on accepted exposure under insurance contracts.

Ge neral liability insurance

This insurance provides coverage for bodily injury and property damage caused to a third party by an insured
person, due to its activity or inactivity or by an insured company, due to its operations or products. ln respect
of property damages, only direct losses are covered, but in respect of bodily injuries, direct as well as
consequential loses are covered, such as unearned income because of temporary or permanent inability and
allowances for dependents.

Reinsurance assets

The benefits to which the Company is entitled under its reinsurance contracts held are recognised as
reinsurance assets.

These assets consist of short-term balances due from reinsurers as well as longer term receivables dependent
on the expected claims and benefits arising under related reinsured insurance contracts. Amounts recoverable
from or due to reinsurers are measured consistently with the amounts associated with the reinsured insurance
contracts and in accordance with the terms of each reinsurance contract. Reinsurance liabilities are primarily
premiums payable for reinsurance contracts and are recognised as an expense when due.

The Company assesses įts reinsurance assets for impairment on a regular basis. lf there is objective evidence
that the reinsurance asset is impaired, the Company reduces the carrying amount of the reinsurance asset to
its recoverable amount and recognises that impairment loss in profit or loss.

Sensitivitv to rance risk

Based on the fact that the Company provides non-lįfe insurance services, only the accounting estimates and

assumptions for reserve for incurred but not reported claims, as disclosed in Note 3, are assessed by the

Company to have a material effect on the timing and uncertainty of the Company's future cash flows. The
Company performs sensitivity testing of IBNR claims reserves and the amounts below represent the test losses
impacting result before taxes. Sensitivity of RBNS relating to annuities is also considered, which depends on
indexation of social benefits and discounting rate used. The Company applies a joint 5o/o rate which did not

change compared to the last year. Annuity RBNS as consisting of non-current liabilities naturally is rather
sensitive to the rate, and small 0.1% change would result in RBNS change of approximately EUR 0,35 million.

Sensitivity analysis for claims reserves a|31.12.2021:
lmpact if claims

handling
expenses 1%

lower than used in
reserve estimates

Motor vehicle third
party liabiliŲ
insurance
General liability
insurance
Fire and other
damage to propeĄ
insurance
Medical expense
insurance
Credįt and suretyship
insurance
Miscellaneous
financial loss
lncome protection
insurance
Motor own damage
insurance
Marine, aviation and
transport insurance

Total

lmpact if loss ratio 1

percent points higher
than used in IBNR

estimates

lmpact if loss ratio 1

percent points
lower than used in

IBNR estimates

lmpact if claims
handling expenses

1% higherthan used
in reserye estimates

701

129

32

24

22

19

10

8

(2)

(700)

(12e)

(27)

(24)

(22)

(1e)

(10)

(8)

2

(23)

(8)

23

8

5

1

1

1

2

6

1

(5)

(1)

(1)

(1)

(2)

(6)

(1)

943

59

(937) 48 {48)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2021
(All amounts in thousands of euro unless otherwise stated)

Concentration bv territorv

All įnsurance contracts have been issued in Lithuania and Estonia. The insured risk territorial coverage is
mainly Lithuania and Estonia except travel policies and MTPL policies in cases of abroad insurance accidents.

Geographical concentratįon of financial assets, financįal liabilities and claims reserves as at the reporting date:

Year2021 OECD
Lithuania countries Total

Financial assets and reinsurers' share of outstanding claims
reseryes
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
lnsurance and reinsurance debtors
Reinsurers' share of outstanding claims reserves
Cash and cash equivalents
Other receivables
Total fįnancial assets and reįnsurers' share of outstanding
claims reserves

143 534
4 891

38 758
9 913
8 125
2 810

150 356
20 890
17 163
5 030
't 098

84

293 890
25 781
55 921
14 943
I 223
2 894

Financial liabilities and outstanding claims reserves
Outstanding claims reserves
lnsurance and reinsurance creditors
lFRS 16 lease financial liabiliŲ
Other fi nancial liabilities
Total financial liabilities and outstanding claims reserves

Net position as at 31 December 2021

Year 2O20

Financial assets and reinsurers' share of outstanding claims
reseryes
Available-for-sale fi nancial investments
Held-to-maturity financial investments
lnsurance and reinsurance debtors
Reinsurers' share of outstanding claims reserves
Cash and cash equivalents
Other receivables
Total financial assets and reinsurers' share of outstanding
claims reserves

Financial liabilities and outstanding claims reserves
Outstanding claims reserves
I nsurance and reinsurance creditors
lFRS 16 lease financial liabiliŲ
Other financial liabilities
Total financial liabilities and outstanding claims reserves

Net position as at 31 December 2020

(76 644) (65 163) (141 807)

131 387 129 458 260 845

Lithuania
OECD

countries Total

208 031

(72 478)
(3 050)
(1 013)

(1 03)

194 621 402652

(133 807)
(5 466)
(2 177)

(357)

(61 32e)
(2 416)
(1 164)

(254)

135 710
4 168

38 667
I 005

14 900
2 454

269 495
24 335
55 363
13811
15 983
2 500

133 785
20 167
16 696
4 806
1 083

46

204904 176 582

(56 272)
(2 685)
(1 356)

(236)

381 486

(67 212)
(3 401)
(1 213)

(7e6)

484)
086)
56e)
032\

(123
(6
(2
(1

(726221 (60 54e) (133 1711

132 282 1 16 033 248 315
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Reinsurance coveraqe

The reinsurance arrangements include excess and catastrophe coverage. The effect of such reinsurance
arrangements is that the Company for each insurance risk has following own retention:

Maximum own retention:

202',1 2020

Personal accident & Travel medical expense
Motor own damage
Motor vehicle third parŲ liabiliŲ
Cargo insurance
Hull, CMR ProperŲ
ProperŲ insurance
General TPL insurance
Debt securities and guarantees

Motor vehicle third paĄ liabiliŲ insurance
Motor own damage insurance
M iscellaneous fi nancial loss
Credit and sureŲship insurance
Medical expense insurance
General liability insurance
Fire and other damage to property insurance
I ncome protection insurance
Marine, aviation and transport insurance

98
150
600
200
200
083
325
433

106
150
600
200
200

1 174
352
470

Liabilitv adequacv test

The technical provision for unexpired risks is formed for unexpired risks under general insurance contracts
when the probable value of insurance benefits and expenses attributable to unexpired periods of insurance
policies valid at the end of the reporting period exceeds the technical provision for unearned premiums related
to these insurance policies. At the end of the financial reporting period, the Company assesses the adequacy
of liabilities and determines whether the insurance liabilities recognized for insurance policies valid during the
reporting year are sufficient. lf the assessment of the adequacy of liabilities reveals thįt the carrying amount
of liabilities is insufficient, this shortfall is recognized as a loss for the financial year in the formation of a
technical provision for unexpired risks.

Unexpired risk reserve as at 31 December 2021 is EUR 5.2 million (31 December 2020: EUR 5.4 million). The
reserve is included in Unearned premium and unexpired risk reserves statement of financial position item and
is disclosed below:

31.12.2021
't 659
I 184

52
378

1 148
388
375
92

0
5 276

31.12.2020
1 896
1 007

716
710
710
315
74
24
0

5 452

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management framework:

The Company's management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's
risk management framework. The management monitors the Company's risk management policies, which are
established to identify and analyse and manage the risks faced by the Company. Policies aim to set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to continuously monitor risk levels and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and procedures are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions, products
offered and emerging best practice.

The operations of the Company and investment management activities in particular expose it to a variety of
financial risks, including credit risk, liquidity risks and market risks, which include interest rate risks, currency
risks, as well as fair value risks. The Company's management seeks to minimise potential adverse effects of
financial risks on the financial performance of the Company by placing limits on the level of exposure that can
be taken.
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The Company takes an exposure to credit risk which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay
amounts in full when due. The Company structures the levels of credit risk it undertales by placing limits onthe amount of risk accepted in relation to one issuer of securities, debtor, borrower, or group of the above.Such risks are monitored on a revolving basis and subject to an annual or more frequent review. Actualexposures against limits are monitored regularly.

Exposure to credit risk is managed through regular analysis of the ability of issuers, borrowers, and potential
borrowers to meet interest and capital repayment obliįations and by thanging these lending limits where
appropriate.

The impairment model in IFRS 9 is based on an 'expected credit loss' model, which means that a loss eventwill no longer need to occur before an impairment allowance is recognised. This requires consįderablejudgement about how changes in economic factors affect ECLs, whicĒ are determineb on a probabitity-
weighted basis. The impairment model applies to financial assets measured at amortized cost or FVOil,
except for investments in equity instruments. The Company considers expected credįt loss for receivables atboth a specific asset and collective level. All individually-significant receivables are assessed for speci1cexpected credit loss. All individually significant receivabies iound not to be specifically impaired ,rė th"ncollectively assessed for expected credit loss. Receivables that are not individually significanĮare cottectūūįassessed for expected credit loss. As the Company's receivables are mostly sĖįrt-term, the Companį
estimates that the expected credit loss allowances for Receivables from ceded r"elnsurance and other debtors
according to IFRS 9 are not material.

35.1 Gredit risk

a) Maximum credit exposure:

Lithuania government debt securities
Poland government debt securities
Corporate debt securities
Collective investment undertakings
Croatia government debt securities
Romania government debt securities
Italy government debt securities
Hungary government debt securities
Bulgaria government debt securities
Cash and cash equivalents
Latvia government debt securities
Shares
Spain government debt securities
lreland government debt securities
Peru government debt securities
Morocco government debt securities
Mexico government debt securities
Serbia government debt securities
Gredit risk

Receivables due from policyholders
Outstanding claims reserve, reinsu rers, share
Other receivables
Reinsurance debtors
Receivables due from intermediaries
Reinsurers'share in uneamed premium reserve

Maximum credit exposure, total

31.12.2021 31j22020

130 737
34 727
28 734
25 781
21 101
't8 969
17 176
12 495
11 987
I 223
5 420
2 571
2 425
1 585
1 525
1 487
1 483
1 469

133 936
39 508
1s 941
24 335
21 847
19 538

14 254
12 353
15 982
5 492
2 525
2 447
1 654

328 894 309 812

53 473
14 943
2 894
1 171
1 277
1 078

50 791
13 811
2 500
3 384
1 188
I 096

74 836 72770
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b) Reinsurance risk breakdown by counterparty ratings as at reporting date:

Rated: 31122021

AA
A
Without rating

Assets related to reinsurance

c) lnvestment breakdown by ratings as at the repoĖing date:

31.12.2020

1 331
14 497

1 363

1 378
16 238

675

'17 191 18 291

Year 2021

Government debt securities
Corporate debt securities
Collective investment undertakings
Shares
Total investment assets

Year 2020

Government debt securities
Corporate debt securities
Collective investment undertakings
Shares
Total investment assets

Rated
AĄA AA A BBB BB

Without
rating Total

262 584
28 734
25 781
2 571

'1 58s 170 882
2 652

87 161
22 016

2 956
4 066

25 781

2 571
1 585 173 535 109 177 7 022 28352 319 671

Rated
AAĄ AA A BBB BB

Without
rating Total

251 029
15 941
24 335
2 525

1 654 178 934
154

70 440
12 639 3 149

24 335
2 525

1 654 179 088 83 079 3 149 26 860 293 830

35.2 Liquidity risk

The Company is exposed to regular calls on its available cash resources from claims settlements. The
Management sets the minimum level of cash resources, which must be available to meet its liabilities.

There has been the following distinction of financial assets, financial liabilities and claim reserves by their
remaining maturities as at the reporting date:

Year2021 Up to 12 Over
months lto5years 5years Total

Financial assets and reinsurers' share of outstanding
claims reserves
Financial investments
lnsurance and reinsurance debtors
Reinsurers' share of outstanding claims reserves
Cash and cash equivalents
Other receivables
Total financial assets and reinsurers' share of
outstanding claims reserves 119 0s2 170200 113 400 4026s2

40 739
55 642
'10 554
I 223
2 894

167 954
244

2 002

1 '10 978
35

2 387

319 671
55 921
14 943
I 223
2 894

Financial liabilities and outstanding claims reserves
Outstanding claims reserves
lnsurance and reinsurance creditors
lFRS 'l6 lease financial liabiliŲ
Other fi nancial liabilities
Total financial liabilities and outstanding claims reseryes

(1 23e)

(81 304) (36 881) (23 6221 (141 807)

(75 037)
(5 466)

(444)
(357)

(35 642) (23128)

(4e4)

33 807)
(5 466)
(2177)

(357)

Net position as at 31 December 2021

63
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Year 2020

Financial assets and reinsurers' share of outstanding
claims reserves
Financial investments
lnsurance and reinsurance debtors
Reinsurers' share of outstanding claims reserves
Cash and cash equivalents
Other receivables
Total financial assets and reinsurers'share of
outstanding claįms reserves

Financial liabilities and outstanding claims reserves
Outstanding claims reserves
I nsurance and reinsurance creditors
lFRS 16lease financial liabiliŲ
Other fi nancial liabilities
Total financial liabilities and outstanding claims reserves

Net position as at 31 December 2020

35.3 Market risk

Corporate debt securities
Government debt securities
Collective investment undertakings

9s 114 185 890 1oo 482 381 486

(34 e3e)

(1 270)

(24 e20) (

(745)

(71 2e7) (36 20e) (25 665) ('t33171)

23817 149 681 74817 248315

2021 2020

Up to 12
months lto5years

Over
5 years

98 457
29

1 996

Total

13 015
54 751
8 866

15 982
2 500

182 358
583

2 949

293 830
55 363
13 8't1
1s 982
2 500

(63
(6

625
086

123 484)
(6 086)
(2 s69)(s54

032)1 032

The Company takes an exposure to market risks, which include interest rate risks, currency risks, as well asfair value risks' Market risks arise from open positions in interest rate, share price and currency instruments,all of which are exposed to general and specific market movements. The management sets limit on the valueof risk that may be accepted, which is monitored regularly.

a) Exposure to interest rate risk

The company's exposure to interest rate risk is limited as significant part of liabilities are not bearing interestand the dominant part of interest bearing financial instrume-nts have fixed interest rates. Maturity dates arematerially equal to reassessment dates on all interest-bearing assets and liabilities. weighted averageeffective interest rates, as applicable, for the interest bearinį'financial instruments, excluding insurancecontracts, were as follows:

Risk measurement is regularly analysed by applying back tests and comparing revaluation profit / (loss) frompositions with the respective potential risk.

Change in investment value and effect on net result due to market interest rate changes was as follows:

2021 2020

Market interest rate and impact on fair value

1.25%
0.74o/o
0.03%

(6 028)
6 028

1.64%
0.80%

Oo/o

(5 800)
5 800

+0.5 percent point
-0.5 percent point
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b) Fair value determination

Financial assets fair value hierarchy consists of three levels. Level 1 - measured based on listed prices
(unadjusted) from active markets for identical assets, i.e. listed liquid debt instruments, listed shares, listed
derivatives. Level 2 assets measured based on input data other than listed prices, classified to Level 1, which
can be directly (as prices) or indirectly (on the basis of prices) observed on the market, i.e. fund units, listed
debt instruments measured based on the valuations published by an authorised information service and
others. Level 3 are assets measured based on input data unobserved on existing markets, they include
investment property. The split of financial values by levels is described in Notes '18 and '19.

Financial assets and financial liabilities other than those reflected at their fair value are receivables, term
deposits with credit institutions and cash and cash equivalents.

lnsurance, reinsurance and other financial debtors and financial liabilities have their remaining maturities of
less than one year and carry no interest, thus, their fair value is deemed not to materially differ from their
carrying amounts.

Term deposits with credit institutions and cash and cash equivalents are short-term financial instruments that
have their remaining maturities of less than one year and that carry no or little interest, thus, their fair value is
deemed not to materially differ from their carrying amounts.

c) Currency risk

The Company is not exposed to significant currency risk as the reinsurance coverage is provided in, and other
transactions are, as a rule, denominated in euros. Management of the Company seeks to limit currency risk
through an investment portfolio created in respective currencies in the amount equal to respective amouįts of
outstanding claims reserves and other liabilities.

Split of financial assets, financial Iįabilities and claim reseryes by currencies as at the reporting:

year202j EUR Other Total
Financial assets and reinsurers' share of outstanding claims
reserves
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
lnsurance and reinsurance debtors
Reinsurers' share of outstanding claims reserves
Cash and cash equivalents
Other receivables
Total financial assets and reinsurers' share of outstanding
claims reserves

Financial liabilities and outstanding claims reserves

Outstanding claims reserves
I nsurance and reinsurance creditors
lFRS 16 lease financial liabiliŲ
Other fi nancial liabilities
Total financial liabilities and outstanding claims reseryes

Net position as at 31 December 2021

(136 169) (5 638) Į141 807l,
265 844 (4 eee) 260 845

293 890
25 781
55 521
14 304
I 223
2 854

293 890
25 781
55 921
14 943
I 223
2 894

639

402 013

(128 16e)
(5 466)
(2177)

(357)

639

(5 638)

402652

(133 807)
(5 466)
(2177)

(3s7)
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Year 2020
Financial assets and reinsurers' share of outstanding claims
reserves
Available-for-sale fi nancial investments
Held-to-maturity fi nancial investments
lnsurance and reinsurance debtors
Reinsurers' share of outstanding claims reserves
Cash and cash equivalents
Other receivables
Total financial assets and reinsurers'
claims reserves

share of outstanding

Financial liabilities and outstanding claims reserves
Outstanding claims reserves
lnsurance and reinsurance creditors
lFRS 16 lease financial liabiliŲ
Other fi nancial liabilities
Total financial liabilities and outstanding claim reseryes
Net position as at 31 December 2020

381 304 381 486

128 4 133 171
252972 (4 657) 248 315

EUR

269 495
24 335
55 363
13 643
'15 968
2 500

Other Total

269 495
24 335
5s 363
13 811
15 982
2 500

'168

14

18
(6
(2
(1

645
086
569)
032)

484)
086)
56e)
032)

123
(6
(2
(1

182

,arl4

changes in the exchange rates do not have a material impact on net position. The main share of financialassets and liabilities įs held in euros.

36. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Company is obliged to achieve and continuously maintain an appropriate level of capital to cover thesolvency requirement. The Risk Appetite determines a tarįĮiea minimum level of own funds ensuring thedefined minimum solvency ratio. The Management Board niust be confident that the business holds enoughcapital to sustain it through significant (but realistic) negative impacts, yet at the same time provide itself withenough capital resource to satisfy its fūure growth amb-itions.

ln addition, the company must ensure it maintains capital levels that comply with European solvencyregulations and the requirements of the Bank of Lithuania. starting f19m 1 January 2016, the solvency lllegislation is effective, and since then Solvency Capital neqūiiĮrent (scR) for the Company is calculatedusing the Standard Formula.

Own Risk and Solvency Assessment (ORSA) process is designed to make a clear link between the risks theCompany has and the capital requirements resulting trom taĮinį on these risks as well as the prospectivecapital positions over the planning period. This Capitai tr,tanag;ūčnt Plan is a signiūni element of the oRSAprocess that communicates the current capital pos.ition ano ūe prospective crp.-tal position over the planningperiod and the need for any capital issuance or redemption.
capital Management policy sets the minimum requirement for the capital management planning, organization,monitoring and remediation actions as well as for the measurement and reporting of capital position in orderfor the management of the company to take timely and necessary actions.
The Company aims at:

' Maintenance of target solvency ratio above the lower level provided for the green zone, as defined inRisk Appetite;

' Effective capitar management by optimizing the use of capitar;

' Total shareholders return maximizatįon for parent company investors in particular by optimizing the useof capital while maintaining safety;

' Maintenance of sufficient funds to cover the Company's liabilities to clients.
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The main principles of determining the amount of proposed dividends to be paid out, as well as its approvaland payment process are defined in the company's Dividend policy.

As at 3't December 2021 the Company assessed facts and circumstances to determine that it manages itscapital adequacy requirements in accordance with solvency ll rules.

The company's capital management process consists of the following stages
. Planning;

. Organization;

. Monitoring;

. Remediation actions.

37. LOSS DEVELOPMENTTABLE

Loss development table illustrates the Company's estimate of ultimate claims outstanding for each accidentyear:
2011
and

earlier 2012 2013 2014 2o1s 2016 2017 2o,r8 2oi9 2o2o 2021 Torar

Gross outstanding claims reserves at the end of accident year and cumulatįve incurred claims in subsequent years

At end of
accident
year
1 year later
2 years later
3 years later
4 years later
5 years later
6 years later
7 years later
8 years later
9 years later
10 years
later

Estonia Branch gross outstanding craims reserves as at acquisition date, 3l May 201 5

82 553 1 979 2923 4319 4319

0
0
0

11 097
8 995
I 167
I 385
8 013
8 395
8 160

0
0

a aaĖ

2 858
1 808
1 521
1 424
1 556
1 632
1 611

0
4 877
6 301

5 450
4 674
4 581
4 451

4 593
4 583

19 338
'19 759
18 553
17 955
17 094
17 263
17 033
16 858

26 224
24 529
24 692
23 934
21 365
20 157
19 693

29 434
29 008
28 891
28 131

26 652
24 991

41 760
40 625
38 795
37 475
34 746

49 543
45 888
43 160

40 079

57 996
51 882
47 912

54 583
45 655

19 844

55 851

7 491

Gross claims
paid
1 year later
2 years later
3 years later
4 years later
5 years later
6 years later
7 years later
8 years later
9 years later
10 years
later

Cumulative
gross
claims paid

(deficiency)

0
0
0

818
527
428
925
34

(147)

11 995
'l 190

473
580
26

(31)

84

15 930
1 139

651

192
239
109

17 128
3 317

826
488
266

26 774
I 520

635
566

27 475
I 872

765

24 817
2 146

0
855
361

263
281
46
55
40

0
0

108
48
62

(24)
(61)

30
(20)

9 856

165 665

20

CY

2605 143 'l 9o1 14317 '18260 22025 29495 30112 26963 1g8ų

464 I 660 2729 3 082 3 970 I 928
excess 668 20 10 't75
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38. ASSET LEASE

a) Lease when a company is a lessee

The Company assesses lease agreements concluded during the financial period to determine whether they
meet the criteria for right-of-use assets under IFRS '16. ln assessing a lease, the leased asset is identified, the
consideratįon for the use of the property, the contractual right to control the use of the property and the right
to receive full economic benefits from its use over a period of time. At the inception of the lease, the right-of-
use asset is measured at its acquisition cost, at the present value of all future payments. ln the statement of
financial position, right-of-use assets are classified in 'Property and equipment' position.

IFRS '16 right-of-use assets as at 31 of December 2021 consist of the lease of office premises of EUR 1 673
thousand (EUR 585 thousand in Lithuania and EUR 1 088 thousand in Estonia) and lease of land under
buildings where insurance activities are carried out in Lithuania of EUR 426 thousand. As at 31 December
2021 , the total value of right-of-use assets amounts to EUR 2 099 thousand. As at 31 December 2020, lease
of office premises right-of-use assets amounted to EUR 2 078 thousand (EUR 778 thousand in Lithuania and
EUR '1 300 thousand in Estonia) and the lease of land in Lithuania amounted to EUR 432 thousand. Total
value of right-of-use assets as at 31 December 2020 amounted to EUR 2 510 thousand.

When the contract lacks interest rate implicit in the lease the Company sets lessee's incremental borrowing
rate. Lessee's incremental borrowing rate is settled based on average interest rates for loans of similar
characteristics as lease liabilities. As at 31 December 2021 Įhe weighted average interest rate on recognition
of lease liabilities in Lithuania was 2.94o/o, for the Estonian branch 2.28%. As at 31 December 2020, the
weighted average interest rate on recognition of lease liabilities in Lithuania was 3,14o/o and 2.65oh for the
Estonian branch.

IFRS 16 right of use assets liabilities change

31 December2019
New agreements, amendments
Lease liability payment
Lease liability interest
31 December 2020
Short-term
Long{erm

Short-term and long{erm lease liability:

Short-term (payable up to 1 year)

Up to 3 months

From 3 months to 1 year

Long-term (payable after 1 year)

Fromlto2years
From2to3years
From3to4years
From4to5years
More than 5 years

Total lease liability

2 018
1 172
(6eo)

69
2 569

554
2 015

2 569
(62)

(382)
52

2',|-77
444

I 733

31 December 2020
New agreements amendments
Lease liability payment
Lease liability interest
31 December 2021
Short-term
Long{erm

2021 2020
444 554

150

294
144

410

1 733 2 015

362
301

285
291

494

406

324
303

237

745
2'.177 2 569

IFRS '16 lease liabilities are classified in the statement of financial position under "Other liabilities"
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The company paid lease.expenses for right-of-use assets for the total amount of EUR 3g2 thousand during
2021 , which are attributed to the item "Amounts from other financial activities" in the statement of cash flows(during 2020: EUR 690 thousand).

The Company has opted for exemptions from the lRFS 16 requirements for shorįterm contracts and low valueleases, that is, recognizing the cost of such leases as operating leases.
2021

(54e)

2020

(652)Depreciation of right-of-use assets:
- Land lease
- Premises lease

Rig ht-of-use assets interest
Expenses relating to short-term leases and low value assets
Total lease expense

Receivable amounts
Up to 1 year
Fromlto2years
From2to3years
From3to4years
From4to5years
More than 5 years

Total

(2)
/5471

(4)
(648)

(s2)
(4s2)

(6e)
(511)

(r 0e3) (1 2321

Depreciation of land as right-of-use asset is included in the statement of comprehensive income item"Acquisition costs" and depreciation of premises lease presented in an item of "Administrative expense,,.Right-of-use assets interest is attributed to the statemenį ot comprehensive income, item ,,Financial income
and expense".

b) Lease when a company is a lessor

The Company leases premises and classifies those leases as operating leases as it does not transfersubstantially all the risks and rewards of the asset. Premises subleases are short-term or low value assets and
are therefore classified as operating leases.

2021 2020

218
Premises lease income 218

The table below provides an analysis of the off-balance sheet receivables for undue operating lease payments
Undiscounted amounts receivable after the reporting period from operating leases aie disclosed.

2021
211

175
101
't0

2

1

2020

197

127

125

59

3

500 511
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Lietuvos draudimas AB
company's code 110051834, J. Basanavičiaus st. 12, Vilnius

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2021
(All amounts in thousands of euro unless otherwise stated)

39. COVID - 19 PANDEMIC IMPACT ASSESMENT

ln spite of possible effects of COVID-19 pandemic continuation, the Management concluded that the Company
would have sufficient resources to continue its activityfora period of at least 12 months from the reporting
date, Management's use of going concern basis of accounting is appropriate.

40. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

No events have taken place from the Statement of Financial Position date to the date of approval of these
financial statements that could materially affect the annual performance, cash flows or the financial position or
related disclosures of Lietuvos draudimas AB as at and for the year ended on the reporting date.

41. RUSSIA - UKRAINE WAR

ln spite of possible effects of the war between Russia and Ukraine, the Management concluded that the
Company would have sufficient resources to continue for a period of at least 12 months from the reporting
date.
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